)!ll!Ull!!lllmml!W!lJJ!IHWIINWNHJ

06012692

.
T e e

82- SUBMISSIONS FACING SHEET

BEST AVAILABLE COPY

MICROFICHE CONTROL LABEL

REGISTRANT'S NAME QJJLU\H)@W\) %M@W&%

*CUR.RENT ADDRESS

**FORMER NAME

**NEW ADDRESS

-FILE NO. 82~ [Q?(Q . | F;ISCAL YEAR '\3[ @J

*  Complete for initial submissions only ** Please note mame oxd address changes

INDICATE FORM TYPE TQ BE USED FOR WORKLOAD ENTRY :

42G3-28 (INITIAL FILING) AR/S ' | /

(ANNUAL REPORT) %

12G32BR (REINSTATEMENT) SUPPL  (OTHER) '

DEF 14A (PROXY) l l

OICF/BY:

DT

R AR T <



Ter>, <o Breodeasts 7 wasd
Anruat Report 2G0s

-: S8 TR L PTVIT S}
BTVBLVE (VRT T . 3
I'a TVBTVETY wTVBTVY)

V‘E TVBTVBT 'BTVBTVE]

‘1 TVBTY TYBTVEZ Vs

» JYBILVBT TR TVB TV

VB"'V?' I ,,:ST‘VBT“ 'h

T‘Iu“‘ FI‘VP‘ |

5:

ls

WS:EEEEJ
<<

gy

; ...jq
ol e
g

.4@&

e
:%

o N

FLEIVED

n Loano o %) |
Ll e SO A oo ‘
\
S OE preep ‘
e W Py |

PR Il -

CUOR [ DN TE§ i 1
. — - 7




CONTENTS

Corporate Information 2
Chairman’s Statement 3
Management Discussion and Analysis 5
Report of the Directors 14
Corporate Governance Report 23
Five-Year Financial Review 30
Report of the Auditors 31
Consolidated Balance Sheet 32
Balance Sheet : 34
Consolidated Income Statement 35
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 36
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 37

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 38




CORPORATE INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. (Executive Chairman)

Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang, G.B.S., LL.D., I.P. (Executive Deputy Chairman)
Mona Fong (Deputy Chairperson)

Louis Page (Managing Director)

Dr. Chow Yet Ching, G.B.S.

Ho Ting Kwan

Chien Lee * (appointed on 17 March 2005)

Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan

Lee Jung Sen, O.B.E. * (retired on 25 May 2005)

Dr. Li Dak Sum, DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. *

Kevin Lo Chung Ping

Robert Sze Tsai To *

Anthony Hsien Pin Lee (Alternate Director to Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan)

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE
Sir Run Run Shaw (Chairman)
Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang
Mona Fong

Louis Page

Kevin Lo Chung Ping

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Robert Sze Tsai To * (Chairman)

Chien Lee * (appointed on 17 March 2003)

Lee Jung Sen * (retired on 25 May 2005)

Ho Ting Kwan (appointed on 22 February 2006)
Dr. Li Dak Sum * (resigned on 22 February 2006)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chien Lee * (Chairman)

Mona Fong

Robert Sze Tsai To *

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

George Chan Ching Cheong (Assistant Managing Director)
Stephen Chan Chi Wan (General Manager — Broadcasting)
Cheong Shin Keong (General Manager — Broadcasting)

COMPANY SECRETARY
Adrian Mak Yau Kee

REGISTERED OFFICE
TVB City, 77 Chun Choi Street, Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, Kowloon, Hong Kong

AUDITORS
PricewaterhouseCoopers
33/F, Cheung Kong Center, 2 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Hopewell Centre 46/F, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

* Independent Non-executive Directors




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

-

As I mentioned last year that 2004 was a year of recovery for
Hong Kong’s economy and TVB, so the year of 2005 brought

continued success on many fronts.

During 2005, we saw the Group’s turnover increase by 9%
from HK$3,817 million to HK$4,177 million. Our advertising
revenue which totalled HK$2,682 million showed an increase
of 3% over 2004. Our overall programme costs which totalled
HK$1,148 million showed a decrease of 12%. Including the gain

on the disposal of our 51% equity interest in Galaxy Satellite TV
Holdings Limited (“GSTV”) of HK$149 million, I am pleased
to report that the Group’s profit attributable to shareholders
grew 64% from HK$719 million to HK$1,180 million. These
numbers marked another major achievement for TVB.

At the Company’s annual general meeting to be held on 24 May
2006, the Directors will recommend a final dividend of HK$1.30
per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK$0.25 per
share paid on 29 September 2005, this makes a total dividend
of HK$1.55 per share for the year ended 31 December 2005,

and represents an increase of 55% over the total dividend of

HK$1.00 per share for last year.

For terrestrial television broadcasting, we benefited from the continued strength in Hong Kong’s economy and a buoyant real
estate market in Hong Kong during the first half of 2005. However, our growth was dampened in the second half, against a
background of rising oil prices and interest rates which adversely affected the growth in the real estate market. Nevertheless, we
are encouraged by the strength of the local economy, and the role of Hong Kong as an Asia’s international city should enable
Hong Kong to continue to prosper. We are optimistic that cross border activities, particularly those with Mainland China, will
continue to increase, and help drive the local economy to new heights.

On programming, we provided audiences worldwide with innovative programme formats and popular drama series, both from
our own library and from overseas. Our production capability and talent pool have again proven to be our key strengths.

Our overseas operations made steady progress, despite worldwide piracy and illegal downloading from the Internet which
continued to adversely impact our video licensing and distribution business. These problems will have to be tackled on an
international scale, and TVB is actively involved in this issue. We have been successful in developing new modes of delivery
for our products to make up for income lost to piracy.

The Pearl River Delta has a population in excess of 23 million, which is a huge market by any standard. Cantonese is the key
dialect in this region and TVB’s Jade channel attract high ratings compared to the national and provincial television channels.
With the Guangdong Landing Rights Agreement in place, we have started the collection of license fees during the first half of
2005. This paves the way for further co-operation with television stations in this market.

Despite some initial setbacks in building our pay TV platform in Hong Kong, in April 2005, we entered into a transaction for
the sale of our 51% interest in GSTV which valued our remaining 49% interest in GSTV at HK$336 million. We welcome our
new business partners whom we are confident will make valuable contributions to the success of GSTV. Subsequent to the year
end in February 2006, GSTV signed a co-operation agreement with PCCW Media Limited in securing additional distribution
for its channels which would increase significantly the homespassed in Hong Kong. With wider distribution through both
satellite and IPTV, we are positive that GSTV will remain a competitive force in the local pay TV market.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (continved)

During the course of 2006, we shall be investing in our transmission network and our production facilities in order to convert
to digital broadcasting and to commence our high definition television broadcasting under a plan agreed with the Government.
Even though this requires substantial investment in new infrastructure and equipment, we believe that this will bring us in line

with international standards and provide much improved picture quality to Hong Kong viewers.

On behalf of the Board, I wish to thank our dedicated staff for their hard work. We look forward to another exciting and

challenging year ahead.

Run Run Shaw

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2006
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held at the Harbour
Room, Mezzanine Floor, Kowloon Shangri-La Hotel, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong, on Wednesday,
24 May 2006 at 11:00 a.m. for the following purposes:-

(1) Toreceive and consider the Company’s Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year ended
31 December 2005,

(2) To sanction a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2005;
(3) To re-elect retiring Directors;

(4) To approve annual Directors’ fee (such revised fee shall take effect from ! July 2006 and be payable to Directors
on a pro rata basis for the financial year ending 31 December 2006) which shall remain the same until the
Company in general meeting otherwise determines;

(5) To re-appoint Auditors and authorise Directors to fix their remuneration; and
(6) As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass the following Resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:-

() “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) below and in substitution of all previous authorities, the exercise by Directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with
unissued shares in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements, options and other
rights, or issue securities, which might require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period
to make or grant offers, agreements, options and other rights, and issue securities, which might require the
exercise of such powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

{c) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted or issued (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by Directors of the Company pursuant to
the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue; or (ii) any scrip dividend
or similar arrangement providing for allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a dividend on the
ordinary shares in the Company (such ordinary shares being defined in this and the following Resolution (II),
“Shares”™) in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, shall not exceed the aggregate of:

(i) 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of

passing of this Resolution; and




an

(ii) (if Directors of the Company are so authorised by a separate ordinary resolution of the shareholders of
the Company) the nominal amount of any share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company
subsequent to the passing of this Resolution (up to a maximum equivalent to 10 per cent of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue at the date of passing of this

Resolution),
and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(d) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution

until whichever is the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiry of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by
the Articles of Association of the Company or any other applicable law to be held; and

{ii1) the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of the Company in general meeting revoking,
varying or renewing the authority given to Directors of the Company by this Resolution; and

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in the Company, or an offer of warrants, options or other securities giving
rights to subscribe for Shares, open for a period fixed by Directors of the Company, to holders of Shares on the
register (and, where appropriate, to holders of other securities of the Company entitled to be offered them) on
a fixed record date in proportion to their then holdings of Shares (or, where appropriate, such other securities),
subject in all cases to such exclusions or other arrangements as Directors of the Company may deem necessary or
expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory outside Hong

Kong.”

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by Directors of the Company during the Relevant Period of all
powers of the Company to purchase Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited or any other
stock exchange on which the Shares may be listed and recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of Shares which may be purchased by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) during the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of passing of this Resolution and the approval pursuant
to paragraph (a) shall be limited accordingly; and

(c) for the purposes of this Resolution, “Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this Resolution

until whichever is the earliest of:
(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiry of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the Company is required by
the Articles of Association of the Company or any other applicable law to be held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by shareholders of the Company in general meeting revoking,
varying or renewing the authority given to Directors of the Company by this Resolution.”

(II) “THAT Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to exercise the powers of the Company referred to

in paragraph (a) of Resolution (I) above in respect of the share capital of the Company referred to in paragraph (c)(ii)

of such resolution.”




(IV) “THAT the period of 30 days during which the Company’s Register of Members may be closed under Section

99(1) of the Companies Ordinance during the calendar year 2006, be and is hereby extended, pursuant to Section
99(2) of the Companies Ordinance, to 60 days.”

By Order of the Board

Adrian Mak Yau Kee
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 12 April 2006

NOTES:

Proxy Information

1.

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (“Annual General Meeting™) to be held
on 24 May 2006 convened by the Notice of Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and
vote in his stead. A proxy needs not be a member of the Company.

A form of proxy for the Annual General Meeting is enclosed. To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the
power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a duly certified copy of that power of
attorney or authority must be deposited with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 46th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48
hours before the time appointed for holding the Annual General Meeting, and in default thereof the form of proxy
and such power of attorney or other authority shall not be treated as valid.

Dividends

3.

The Board has recommended a final dividend of HK$1.30 per share for 438,000,000 issued shares in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2005 payable to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 24 May 2006.
The final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 3 May 2006 to 24 May 2006, both dates inclusive,
during which period the registration of transfers of shares will be suspended. To rank for the final dividend, all
transfers must be lodged with the Company’s Registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:00 p.m.
on 2 May 2006.

The 21-day book close period (from 3 May 2006 to 24 May 2006) is set to allow sufficient time for members of
the Company to complete and return the declaration of voting controllers as required under the provisions of the
Broadcasting Ordinance.




Directors Y

6.

In relation to agenda item No. (3) in the Notice of Annual General Meeting regarding re-election of Directors: Ms.
Mona Fong, Dr. Li Dak Sum and Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping are retiring at the Annual General Meeting pursuant
to Article 114(A) of the Company’s Articles of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
The re-election of the retiring Directors will be individually voted on by shareholders.

The biographical details of each of the Directors who stand for re-election at the Annual General Meeting, as at
29 March 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to the release of the Notice of Annual General Meeting
(“the latest practicable date™), are set out below to enable shareholders to make an informed decision on their re-
election. Save for the information set out in this paragraph and in paragraphs 6, 8 and 9, there is no information to
be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements under Paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of shareholders in respect of the Directors
who stand for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

7.1 Ms. Mona Fong (age 71)

Ms. Lee Mong Lan, alias Mona Fong, has been a Director of the Company since 1988 and Deputy
Chairperson since 25 October 2000. Ms. Fong is the wife of Sir Run Run Shaw, the Executive Chairman of
the Company.

Ms. Fong is a member of the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. She also
serves on the boards of various subsidiaries and associated companies of the Company.

Ms. Fong is the Deputy Chairperson and Managing Director of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited, a
company listed on the Exchange, and Chairperson and Managing Director of the Shaw group of companies.
She is also the Chairperson of The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited, The Shaw Prize Foundation
Limited and The Sir Run Run Shaw Charitable Trust and member of the Board of Trustees of the Shaw
College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

7.2 Dr. Li Dak Sum DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. (age 85)

Dr. Li Dak Sum was appointed a Director of the Company in 1995 and is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company. He has met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and has submitted to the Exchange a written confirmation concerning his independence to the Company. Dr.
Li has also given an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company. He has no financial or family
relationships with any other Directors, Senior Management or substantial shareholders of the Company.

Dr. Li is the Chairman of Sharp-Roxy (Hong Kong) Limited which markets “Sharp” products in Hong Kong
and China. Dr. Li is also the Chairman of various hotel operations in Singapore, Australia and New Zealand.

In the past three years, Dr. Li has not served as a director of any other listed public companies.

7.3 Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping (age 69)

Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping joined the Company in 1966 as Project Engineer and as General Manager from
1978 to 1980. He was appointed a Director in 1977 and is a Non-executive Director of the Company. He is
a member of the Executive Committee of the Board. He also serves on the boards of five subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Lo has no financial or family relationships with any other Directors, Senior Management or substantial
shareholders of the Company.

In the past three years, Mr. Lo has been an Executive Director of Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited, a
company listed on the Exchange.




8. With the exception of Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping, all the other Directors who stand for re-¢lection at the Annual
General Meeting have interests in the shares of the Company. Such Directors’ interests in the shares of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance are set out below and remain
unchanged as at the latest practicable date.

No. of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.05 Each

Percentage

Personal Family Corporate of Issued

Interests Interests Interests Total Capital (%)

Mona Fong 1,146,000 - - 1,146,000 0.26%
Dr. Li Dak Sum - - 300,000%* 300,000 0.07%

* The shares were held by Roxy Property Investments Co. Ltd. in which Dr. Li Dak Sum holds 100% equity
interests.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

A report of the beneficial interests of all the Directors and chief executive in the shares of the Company as
recorded in the register maintained under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance is set out in the
Directors’ Report in the Company’s 2005 Annual Report.

9.  The fees paid during the year ended 31 December 2005 to the Directors who stand for re-election at the Annual
General Meeting are set out below:

Member of Member of Member of

Deputy Executive Audit Remuneration

Chairperson Director Committee  Committee Committee

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$

Mona Fong 150,000 30,000 75,000 - 3,781
Dr. Li Dak Sum - 30,000 - 20,000 -
Kevin Lo Chung Ping - 30,000 75,000 - -

10. It was recommended that the Directors’ Fee be increased from HK$30,000 per annum to HK$75,000 per annum,
to be effective from 1 July 2006.

The above Directors” Fee does not include any additional fees payable to Directors serving on the Board
Committees, which have been approved by the Board at its meeting on 22 March 2006 pursuant to Article 101 of
the Company’s Articles of Association and are set out below:

Fee Approved revised fee

(HK$ per annum) {HKS per annum)

Executive Committee (applicable up to 30 June 2006) (w.e.f. 1 July 2006)

Chairman - -

Member 75,000 75,000
Audit Committee

Chairman 140,000 140,000

Member 20,000 50,000

Remuneration Committee

Chairman 15,000 40,000
Member 10,000 30,000




General Mandates to Issue and Repurchase Shares

11. In relation to Agenda Item (6)(I), the purpose of this resolution is to give a General Mandate to authorise the
Directors to issue additional shares.

12. In relation to Agenda Item (6)(II), the purpose of this resolution is to give a General Mandate to authorise the
Directors to repurchase issued shares.

13. In relation to Agenda Item (6)(IID), the purpose of this resolution is to extend the authority given under Resolution
(6)(I) to shares repurchased under the authority given in Resolution (6)(11).

Right to Demand a Poll

14. Pursuant to Article 73 of the Articles of Association of the Company, a resolution put to the vote of the meeting
shall be decided on a show of hands, but a poll may be demanded

(A)

(B)

(before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or the withdrawal of any other demand for a
poll) by:
(i) the Chairman; or

(ii) at least three Members present in person or by proxy for the time being entitled to vote at the meeting; or

(iii) by any Member or Members present in person or by proxy and representing not less than one-tenth of
the total voting rights of all the Members having the right to vote at the meeting; or

(iv) by a Member or Members present in person or by proxy and holding shares in the Company conferring
a right to vote at the meeting being shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not
less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the shares conferring that right; or

(before, at or during the general meeting) a poll is directed orally or by notice in writing by the Broadcasting
Authority to be conducted upon any resolution put or to be put to the general meeting pursuant to Section
19(3) of Schedule 1 to the Broadcasting Ordinance.

15. Pursuant to Article 73, the Chairman will demand a poll on each of the resolutions to be put to the forthcoming
general meeting. The results of the poll will be published in the local newspapers and on the Company’s and the
Exchange’s websites on the business day following the Annual General Meeting.




The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the conteqts of this Explanatory Statement, makes no representation as
to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the

whole or any part of the contents of this Explanatory Statement.

Directors: Registered office and principal
Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. - Executive Chairman place of business:
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Ho Ting Kwan Hong Kong
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Robert Sze Tsai To *
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* Independent Non-executive Directors
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12 April 2006

To Shareholders
Dear Sir or Madam,

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
REGARDING GENERAL MANDATES TO REPURCHASE SHARES
AND TO ISSUE SHARES

Introduction

This explanatory statement and the appendix contain all the information required pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) to enable
shareholders of the Company to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against ordinary resolutions
to renew the Directors’ general mandates to 1) repurchase Ordinary Shares of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the
Company (“Shares”) (“Share Repurchase Mandate”) and 2) issue Shares (“Share Issue Mandate”). The resolutions will
be proposed at the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 24 May 2006 ( “Annual General Meeting”™).

General mandate to repurchase Shares

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2005, a general mandate (“Existing Repurchase
Mandate™) was given by the Company to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares
with an aggregate nominal amount of up to 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the

Company in issue as at the date of passing of the resolution. Under the Listing Rules, the Existing Repurchase Mandate

will lapse at the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting.




An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to grant to the Directors a general mandate to
exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares ( “Share Repurchase Mandate™) not exceeding 10 per cent of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of passing such ordinary resolution.

General mandate to issue Shares

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 25 May 2005, a general mandate (“Existing Issue Mandate™)
was given by the Company to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with Shares
not exceeding 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of the passing of the resolution and such general mandate was extended by adding to it the aggregate nominal amount
of any Shares repurchased by the Company under the authority to repurchase Shares granted on that date. Under the
Listing Rules, the Existing Issue Mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares will also lapse at the conclusion of the

Annual General Meeting.

An ordinary resolution will accordingly be proposed at the Annual General Meeting to grant to the Directors a general
mandate to allot, issue and deal with Shares ( “Share Issue Mandate™) and approving an extension of the Share Issue

Mandate.

The Directors believe that the granting of the Share Repurchase Mandate and the Share Issue Mandate are in the best
interests of the Company as well as its shareholders. Accordingly, the Directors recommend that all shareholders of the
Company should vote in favour of all the aforesaid resolutions set out in the Notice of Annual General Meeting.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board

Run Run Shaw
Executive Chairman




APPENDIX ,

The explanatory statement (“Explanatory Statement”) set out below contains the information required to be sent
to the shareholders under Rule 10.06(1)(b) of the Listing Rules. This Explanatory Statement also constitutes the
memorandum of the terms of the proposed repurchases as required under section 49BA of the Companies Ordinance.

1. Listing Rules requirement for repurchase of Shares

The Listing Rules permit companies with a primary listing on the Stock Exchange to repurchase their shares on
the Stock Exchange subject to certain restrictions, the most important of which are summarised below:

(a) Shareholder approval

All proposed share repurchases on the Stock Exchange by a company with its primary listing on the Stock
Exchange must be approved in advance by an ordinary resolution of shareholders, either by way of general
mandate or by specific approval in relation to specific transactions.

Such authority may only continue in force during the period from the passing of the resolution until the next
annual general meeting of that company or the expiration of the period within which the next annual general
meeting of that company is required by the memorandum and articles of association of that company or any
applicable law to be held or the revocation or variation of the resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of that company in general meeting, whichever is the earliest.

(b) Maximum number of shares to be repurchased and subsequent issues

A maximum of 10 per cent of the fully-paid issued share capital of a company at the date of passing of the
-relevant resolution may be repurchased on the Stock Exchange. A company may not issue or announce a
proposed issue of new shares for a period of 30 days immediately following a shares repurchase (other than
an issue of shares pursuant to the exercise of warrants, share options or similar instruments requiring the
company to issue shares, which were outstanding prior to such repurchase) without the prior approval of the
Stock Exchange.

2. Number of Shares subject to the Repurchase Mandate

As at 29 March 2006, being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this Explanatory Statement (“Latest
Practicable Date™), the issued share capital of the Company comprised 438.000,000 shares of HK$0.05 each.
If the ordinary resolution authorising the Directors of the Company to repurchase its own shares (“Repurchase
Mandate™) is passed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 24 May 2006, and assuming
that no shares in the Company are issued or repurchased prior to the date of passing the said resolution, up to
43,800,000 fully paid-up shares representing 10 per cent of the existing issued share capital of the Company,
may be repurchased by the Company during the period from the date of the passing of the resolution up to the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting. The shares to be repurchased by the Company must be fully paid up.

3. Source of funds

Repurchases must be funded out of funds legally available for such purpose in accordance with the memorandum
and articles of association of the Company and the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong. It is envisaged that the
funds required for any repurchase would be derived from the Company’s available cash flow or working capital

facilities.




Reasons for repurchases

The Directors believe that it is in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders for the Directors to have
a general authority from the shareholders to enable the Company to repurchase its own shares in the market at any
appropriate time. Such repurchases may, depending on market conditions and funding arrangements at that time,
lead to an enhancement of the net asset value of the Company and/or its earnings per share and will only be made
when the Directors believe that such repurchases will benefit the Company and its shareholders.

Financial effect of repurchases

The Directors do not propose to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such extent as would, in the circumstances,
have a material adverse effect on the funding requirements of the Company or the gearing levels which in
the opinion of the Directors are from time to time appropriate for the Company. However, on the basis of the
consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2005 (being the date to which the latest
published audited financial statements of the Company have been made up), there might be a material adverse
impact on the funding or gearing position of the Company in the event that the Repurchase Mandate is exercised
in full.

Disclosure of Interests

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange that, so far as the same may be applicable, they will
exercise the powers of the Company to make repurchases pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate set out in the
Notice of Annual General Meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Companies Ordinance.

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge, having made all reasonable enquiries, any of their
associates have any present intention to sell any of the Company’s shares to the Company or its subsidiaries if the
Repurchase Mandate is approved and exercised.

No connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company have notified the Company that they have
a present intention to sell any of the Company’s shares to the Company, or have undertaken not to do so, if the
Repurchase Mandate is approved and exercised.

Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers

If, as the result of a repurchase of the Company’s shares, a shareholder’s proportionate interest in the voting rights
of the Company increases, such increase will be treated as an acquisition for the purposes of the Hong Kong Code
on Takeovers and Mergers (“Takeovers Code™). As a result, a shareholder, or a group of shareholders acting in
concert, could, depending on the level of increase of shareholders’ interest, obtain or consolidate control of the
Company and become obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rules 26 and 32 of the Takeovers
Code. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and associated parties held a
total of 142,320,828 shares in the Company, representing 32.49 per cent of the existing issued share capital of
the Company. If the Directors were to exercise the Repurchase Mandate in full, such shares would represent
approximately 36.10 per cent of the issued share capital of the Company, and an obligation to make a general
offer to shareholders may arise as a result. According to the Takeovers Code, the Company may repurchase a
maximum of 7.16 per cent of the Company’s existing issued share capital before an obligation to make a general
offer to shareholders is triggered. It is not the present intention of the Directors to exercise the Repurchase
Mandate in such manner as to trigger off any general offer obligations.

Directors of the Company have no intention to exercise the Repurchase Mandate to such an extent which shall
result in the level of shareholdings in the Company held in the hands of the public fall below the minimum
prescribed percentage of 25% laid down in Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.




8. Share repurchases made by the Company

The Company has not repurchased its own shares (whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in the past six
months preceding the date of this Explanatory Statement.

9. Share Prices

The highest and lowest prices at which the Company’s shares were traded on the Stock Exchange in each of the
12 months prior to the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:

Month Highest Lowest
(HK$) (HKS)
2005 March 39.60 33.80
April 42.10 38.80
May 42.10 37.50
June 47.20 39.60
July 46.75 42.90
August 47.15 42.50
September 47.80 39.80
October 47.25 41.40
November 43.70 39.30
December 42.00 40.05
2006 January 45.80 41.20
February 44.00 39.50

The notice convening the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at the Harbour Room, Mezzanine Floor,
Kowloon Shangri-la Hotel, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon on Wednesday, 24 May 2006 at 11:00 a.m. is enclosed with
the 2005 Annual Report of the Company to be despatched to shareholders together with this Explanatory Statement. |
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TELEVISION BROADCASTS LIMITED
Proxy Form for Annuat General Meeting

of

g a Member of the above-named Company, hereby appoint

of

. or failing

m the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy, 1o attend and to vote on my/our behalf at the Annual

eneral Meeting of the said Company to be held on 24 May 2006

We direct that my/our proxy vote as indicated:

and at any adjournment thereof.

Ordinary Resolution

For

Against

To adopt the Accounts and the Reports of the Directors and the
Auditors for the year ended 31 December 2005

g

To sanction a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2005

e

To re-elect retiring Directors:
(i) Ms. Mona Fong

(i1} Dr. Li Dak Sum

(1it) Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping

To approve annual Directory’ fee

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors of the Company
and authorise Directors to fix their remuneration

6(1)

To give a general mandate (o Directors to issue additional shares

6(11)

To give a general mandate to Directors to repurchase issued shares

6(111)

To extend the authority given to the Directors under Resotution 6(1)
to shares repurchased under the authority under Resolution 6(11)

G(1V)

To extend the book close period from 30 days to 60 days

NOTES :

Full name(s) and address(es) to be inserted in BLOCK CAPITALS.
Insert the pame(s) and address(es) of the proxy(ies) desired in the
space provided. Any alteration made to this form of proxy must
be initialled by the person who signs it. A proxy needs not be a
member of the Company.

If the appointor is a corporation, this form must be under its
common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly
asthorised in that behalf.

In the case of joint holders, the proxy must be signed by the
member whose name stands first on the Register of Members.
Important: I you wish to vote for a resolution, place a "/" in the
box marked "For". If you wish to vote against a resohntion, place
a "/" in the box marked "Against". Failure to complete the boxes
will entitle your proxy to cast his vote at his discretion.

To be valid, this form, together with any power of attorney under
which it is signed, must be deposited at Computershare Houg Kong
Investor Services Limited, Hopewell Centre, 46th Floor, 183 Queen's
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding the Meeting or the adjourned Meeting.

Member's Signature(s)

Number of ordinary
shares to which this
proxy relates

Dated




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

(a)

(b)

Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2005, the Group achieved a turnover of approximately HK$4,177 million (2004:
HK$3,817 million), which represented an increase of 9%. Cost of sales amounted to approximately HK$1,792 million (2004:
HK$1,842 million), which represented a decrease of 3%. Gross profit for the year amounted to HK$2,385 million (2004:
HK$1,975 million), which represented a gross profit percentage of 57% (2004: 52%).

Included in cost of sales was the cost of programmes, film rights, movies and stocks which amounted to approximately
HK$1,148 million (2004: HK$1,311 million), representing a decrease of 12%.

Selling, distribution and transmission costs amounted to approximately HK$452 million, having been maintained at
a similar level as last year (2004: HK$450 million). General and administrative expenses amounted to approximately
HK$491 million (2004: HK$513 million), which represented a decrease of 4%.

Finance costs for the year amounted to HK$1 million (2004: HK$7 million), a decrease of 86%. The reduction was due to
the repayment of bank loans during the year.

The Group’s share of the losses of an associate, GSTV, increased from HK$166 million to HK$187 million for the year.
This was attributable to the increase in advertising and promotion costs of its subsidiary, Galaxy Satellite Broadcasting
Limited (“GSB™), for its pay TV channels.

The gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$149 million was related to disposal of the
51% equity interest in GSTV to See Corporation Limited (previously Ruili Holdings Limited) and Dr. Charles Chan Kwok
Keung, as announced in April 2005.

The Group’s taxation charge amounted to HK$232 million (2004: HK$152 million), which represented an increase of
53%. The increase in the taxation charge was due to the increase in the provision for Hong Kong profits tax of HK$99
million as a result of the increase in net profit generated in Hong Kong during the year, and a provision for deferred
income tax of HK$29 million on the undistributed profits of Liann Yee Production Co. Ltd. (“LYP”) in Taiwan.

The profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$1,180 million (2004: HK$719 million), which represented an

-increase of 64%. Earnings per share was HK$2.69 (2004: HK$1.64).

Comments on Segment Information

Revenue from terrestrial television broadeasting which comprised predominantly local advertising revenue, increased from
HK$2,007 million to HK$2,236 million. As further disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements on pages
53 and 55 of the Annual Report, certain reclassification of revenues took place in 2005. The revenue for 2004, if stated on
a similar basis, would have been HK$2,145 million.

The cost of programmes, which comprised cost of self-produced TV programmes and acquired film rights, were kept
under tight budgetary control. Through the use of a different programme mix, primarily on Jade during prime time, which
took into account audience taste and market trends, the cost of programmes was lower than last year. The absence of the
coverage of special overseas events such as the 2004 Olympic Games in Athens also resulted in lower costs in 2005. As a
result, this segment contributed an operating profit of HK$859 million (2004: HK$519 million), an increase of 66% over

last year.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (coninued)

(©)

Revenue from programme licensing and distribution increased from HK$679 million to HK$693 million, which
represented an increase of 2%. Our cost of distribution was kept in line with the growth of the business. As noted in the
“Business Review and Prospects™ section, Malaysia and Singapore remain the two most important markets for telecast
licensing business. This segment contributed an operating profit of HK$391 million (2004: HK$375 miliion), an increase

of 4% over last year.

Revenue from overseas satellite pay TV operations, which comprised TVB Satellite Platform (“TVBSP”) USA, TVB
Australia (“TVBA™) and The Chinese Channel (“TCC”) Europe, showed an increase from HK$214 million to HK$247
million, which represented an increase of 15%. This segment turned profitable in 2005 and contributed an operating profit
of HK$29 miilion (2004: an operating loss of HK$7 miliion).

Revenue from channel operations, which comprised the Taiwanese channel, TVBS, operating under LYP, the two channels
- TVBS and Xing He, and the supply of six channels to GSB, the pay TV platform in Hong Kong, showed an increase of
8% from HK$922 million to HK$998 million. Improvement in revenues from LYP, TVB8 and Xing He were noted due to
the increase in advertising and subscription revenue. This segment contributed an operating profit of HK$194 million (2004:

HK$171 million), an increase of 13% over last year.

Business Review and Prospects

Terrestrial Television Broadcasting

Our advertising income growth in 2004 continued into the first quarter of 2005. However, as expected, the cycle of
double-digit growth experienced since the end of SARS came to an end, and growth was less pronounced for the remaining

three quarters of the year.

In an attempt to meet advertisers’ needs for value and impact, considerable effort was put into developing innovative
“products”. Two products which were the focus of our efforts have performed well. One of these is the short duratior

fixed-schedule “info-service” spot.

Info-service sales have grown by more than 10% and we are putting greater efforts in increasing the supply anc

effectiveness of this advertising format.

The second area of focus in product selling is product sponsorships (sometimes referred to as product placements)
Revenue from product sponsorship in our weekday prime time dramas has increased by more than 40% in 2005.

Another promising area delivering value and innovation to clients is that of offering added value to our advertisers by
means of extending their sponsorship activities with TVB into other media such as the Internet, mobile phones and outdoo
video, or by extending their reach to the Mainland China market. We have begun our efforts in this area and so far the

results are encouraging.

Four categories of advertisers were important in contributing to our growth in 2005. They were local property developers
broadband service providers, amusement parks and skin care products. The growth in these four categories exceeded 50%

However, it is not prudent to rely on continued growth in these categories. Concerted new client/new categor:
development, along with the above-mentioned product developments will be key areas of effort to deliver growth for 200¢

The prospects for growth in 2006 are reasonable given the overall economic confidence among both consumers an

advertisers, and our advance commitments are conducive to delivering growth.
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TVB Jade and Pearl remained the preferred terrestrial channels in Hong Kong. Jade achieved an average weekday prime
time audience share* of 83% among terrestrial Chinese channels and Pearl, an average audience share* of 75% among

terrestrial English channels during the year.
* Prime time audience share refers to average share from 7:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Jade, and 7:00 p.m. to midnight on Pear!.

The Jade Channel

During the year, Jade successfully developed and produced a number of new programme formats. “Justice for All”,
which was produced with the support of the Law Society of Hong Kong, made legal information easier to understand and
relevant to the general public. It gained critical and international recognition as well as attracting an average of close to 1.6
million viewers per episode. “Minutes to Fame” which provided an opportunity for the general public to showcase their
talents, was the most talked about programme in town. The two series attracted an average of close to 1.9 million viewers.
Its grand finale “Minutes to Fame : World Champion” attracted over 2.2 million viewers. Jade also organised the first “Mr.
Hong Kong Contest” during the year which captured 1.5 million viewers.

Other variety and infotainment programmes were also successful. “TVB 38th Anniversary Special” was watched by 2.3
million viewers; “Miss Hong Kong Pageant 2005”, by over 1.9 million viewers; and “All Singers for TVB Anniversary
Special 20057, by 1.8 million viewers. The year saw the conclusion of the popular entertainment series “The Super Trio
Continues...”, drawing an average of 2.2 million viewers.

Jade continued to excel in its drama productions. The comedies “War of In-Laws” and “Life made simple”, and the drama
on police cadets “The Academy” attracted around 2.2 million viewers per episode.

Among acquired programmes, “Jewel in the Palace” was the best-performed series in terms of viewership, drawing an
average of 2.9 million viewers.

For news and public affairs programmes, TVB provided live and updated news coverage of protests during the World
Trade Organisation conference in Hong Kong in December 2005.

The Pearl Channel

The year 2005 was one of remarkable achievement for Pearl — the top 100 most popular programmes, mostly blockbuster
movies, on English terrestrial channels in Hong Kong were all programmes on Pearl. The top rating programme of the year
“Harry Potter and the Sorcerer’s Stone™ attracted an average of 743,000 viewers. Top movies of the year included “Titanic”,
the “Star Wars” series, “The Lord of the Rings: the Fellowship of the Ring”, “The Lord of the Rings: the Two Towers” and
“The Mummy Returns”.

Pearl successfully cultivated viewers’ interest in quality foreign drama series. “Lost” became the top drama series of the
year with an average of 254,000 viewers. Its first episode attracted 687,000 viewers. During the year, Pearl also introduced
“Desperate Housewives” and “Nip/Tuck” to the local audience.

Pearl also showcased a variety of sports programmes. Selected matches of the “Real Madrid Asian Tour 2005” attracted
over 200,000 viewers. The soccer event - Barcelona vs Shenzhen Jianlibao was watched by close to 210,000 viewers.
Other sports events on Pearl included selective matches and coverage of the 4th East Asian Games Men’s Soccer Matches;

2005 Wimbledon Championships; and the Dutch Soccer League.
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Commendations and Awards
TVB’s creative and production excellence in infotainment, drama, variety and public affairs programmes and on-air

promotion continued to gain international recognition in 2005.

At the Asian Television Awards 20035, the finale for “Justice for All” won the Best Infotainment Programme Award and
was also highly commended in the Best Game or Quiz Programme Category. Also highly commended were “Minutes to
Fame”™ in the Best Entertainment Programme category and “War and Beauty” in the Best Drama Series category. At the

Asia-Pacific Children & Youth TV Festival, “Sunshine Heartbeat” was a finalist.

“Sunday Report: Big Head Babies” produced by TVB’s News and Public Affairs team gained recognition in different
international awards: Certificate of Recognition at the ABU/CASBAA UNICEF Child Rights Award 2005; finalist in
the New York Festivals 2005 in the Health/Medical Information category and Diplome de Nomination, 45th Festival de

Television de Monte Carlo, in News Documentary.

TVB's on-air promos won the Gold Prize with “The 10th China National Games Image” promo at PROMAX Asia 2005 in
the Best Sports Campaign category and PROMAX China 2005, in Best Sports Promo. “The Dragon Boat Festival Image”
promo won the Gold Prize in Best Holiday/Seasonal Promo in PROMAX Asia 2005, and “War of In-Laws” promo,
the Best Drama Promo, PROMAX China 2005. The “Pear] Reality Image™ promo won the Silver Prize of Interstitial/
Promotainment — Block category at PROMAX World Gold Awards.

Community and Public Service

The devastating Tsunami in South Asia on 26 December 2004 took away thousands of lives and turned tens of thousands
homeless. TVB lost no time in reacting positively to the disaster by taking action promptly. Within 56 hours, TVB
produced and broadcasted two charity fund-raising programmes in aid of five charitable organizations; Hong Kong
Red Cross, Oxfam Hong Kong, Salvation Army, UNICEF and World Vision Hong Kong. The two special programmes
“Operation Relief 2005 broadcasted on 1 and 2 January 2005 raised HK$33 million and HK$8S5 million respectively. The
latter was also telecast to overseas cities in Malaysia, Singapore, Australia, USA and Canada to appeal to overseas Chinese
for support. Jade also aired a seven-hour live programme “Crossing Borders Fund Raising Show” which successfully

raised HK$35 million towards Tsunami relief.

The total sum raised in 2005 by TVB in aid of diverse worthy causes amounted to HK$327 million. Other noteworthy
charity appeals/shows included the “Tung Wah Charity Show 2005 which raised a record-breaking HK$82 million;
“Support The China AIDS Initiative TV Gala 2005, HK$32 million towards the Hong Kong AIDS Foundation; the “Yan
Chai Charity Show 20057, HK$24 million for Yan Chai Hospital.

Programme Licensing and Distribution

During the year, our video distribution business remained seriously affected by piracy and illegal Internet downloading.
The launch of video-on-demand service via broadband and digital cable TV platforms in Mainland China in the last quarter
of 2005 has given rise to a new revenue stream. This type of video delivery format is forecast to grow, albeit partially at
the expense of traditional video rental and sell-through business. In order to capture this trend, we are exploring video-
on-demand services in other international markets. New streams of revenue will also be established through delivery of

content to mobile phones and portable media players.

Our telecast licensing business achieved single-digit growth in 2005. Malaysia and Singapore remain the two most
important markets. The merger of the two Singapore free television stations will affect our business but the shortfall should
be offset by our increased sales efforts in other markets. In Mainland China, the telecast market has become competitive

especially with the increased popularity of Korean dramas. We are maintaining our market share there. The licensing
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revenue from Mainland China has increased with license fees from television stations in the Pearl River region carrying

our channels. The recent popularity of the period drama series, “War and Beauty”, broadcasted by Hunan TV which

received record high ratings in Mainland China will help to enhance our licensing business and market share there.

Overseas Satellite Pay TV Operations

(a) TVB Satellite Platform (“TVBSP”) USA
In the United States, the number of subscribers to our five-channel Jadeworld package, which is being carried by
DirecTV, grew at a high single-digit rate.
As part of a continuous process to enhance the platforms’ competitiveness, TVBSP will launch a Vietnamese language
dubbed TVB content channel targeting the Vietnamese speaking Chinese and other ethnic groups at the end of the
first quarter of 2006, and is developing a new Mandarin language channel to cater for the increasing immigrants from
Mainland China.

(b) TVB Australia (“TVBA™)
In Australia, the number of subscribers to our Jadeworld platform achieved double-digit growth.
With aggressive and innovative promotion packages, Jadeworld has established a reputation as a high quality content
provider and an effective advertising medium. We saw strong growth of advertising revenue in 2003.

(¢} The Chinese Channel (“TCC"™) Europe
Despite stagnant subscriber growth, TCC had turned around and generated profit. Its performance improved two fold
when compared to 2004.
To cope with the rapidly growing Mandarin speaking Chinese population in continental Europe, TCC is planning to
launch a Mandarin language general entertainment channel to strengthen the appeal of its existing Cantonese channel.

Channel Operations

(a) TVBS - Taiwan

2005 was a challenging year for TVBS in Taiwan. The local economy recorded a lacklustre GDP growth of 2.8%.
TVBS’ turnover and operating profit were maintained at the 2004 level. Due to the payment of dividend withholding
tax, net profit attributable to the Group was affected. However, TVBS channel ratings are amongst the highest in
Taiwan and its self-produced programmes also achieved high ratings individually (notably “2100 Pop Blog”, “News
Nightclub” and “Lady First”).

Shortly after granting TVBS its renewed license in August 2005, the Government Information Office (“GIQ™) in
Taiwan (which regulates satellite and cable television operations) issued a regulatory demand alleging that TVBS®
shareholding was not in compliance with the local law. It also demanded TVBS to rectify its shareholding structure
and imposed a fine of NT$1,000,000. Under legal advice which opined that TVBS’ shareholding structure is lawful,
TVBS appealed against this administrative ruling in December 2005 and the hearing of the appeal is still pending.
Operation of all TVBS channels remained normal, despite such action.

Since February 2006, a newly formed independent administrative body, the National Communications Commission
has taken over the regulatory role of the telecommunication and television industries from the GIO. We look forward

to working closely with the Commission.
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We believe that TVBS’ strong positive brand image positions us strategically and advantageously in the middle of this
dynamic arena. Following the successes of 2004 and 2005, we are confident to see a continuously profitable operation

in the Taiwan market in 2006.

(b) TVBS8 & Xing He
The performance of both Xing He and TVB8 continued to progress well during the year. Xing He has contributed a
gross profit to the operation, whereas TVBS& has substantially narrowed the losses.

Subscription income of both Xing He and TVBS8 had increased moderately in Malaysia but advertising sales and
commission income from ASTRO All Asia Networks plc. had recorded a double-digit growth. The growth was
mainly attributed to the high rating performance of Xing He Channel in Malaysia. During 2005, Xing He Channel was
launched in Vietnam and Thailand and is distributed through satellite.

(¢) Supply of Channels to GSTV
The Group continued to supply TV programmes in Cantonese to GSB, the wholly-owned subsidiary of GSTYV, during
the year under a channels supply agreement dated 4 September 2001. The six channels comprised 24-hour news
channel TVBN, TVB’s classic drama channel TVB Classic, interactive consultation and health advices channel TVE
Health, music channel TVBM, children’s channel TVB Kids, and acquired Asian region and overseas soap operas
channel TVB Drama. By way of an agreement dated 29 June 2005, an amended channels supply agreement was
entered into between GSB and TVB whereby certain amendments were agreed including changing the supply of the

above six channels from an exclusive basis to a non-exclusive basis.

The Group also entered into a separate channels supply agreement dated 22 June 2005 for the supply of two Taiwanese
channels, TVBS-News and TVBS-Asia to GSB.

Other Businesses

(a) Internet Operations
All areas of our Internet operations showed good growth. Most noteworthy is the growth in 3G mobile content sales
TVB’s reputable 24 hour news and unique entertainment content continue to be regarded as essential content for 3C

mobile phone users. As such, sales of content to 3G devices has grown by 97%.

In the area of broadband content to PCs, the provision of drama series proved to be successful. This has heiped grov
the number of new subscribers to the service and our income from broadband content sales has increased by 15%.

Portal tvb.com tried to attract large number of visitors while providing healthy and wholesome content for all ag
groups. Thus, we are pleased that our website was the only commercial website among the eleven winners of the
“2005 Meritorious Websites Contest” jointly organised by Young Women Christian Association and Television anc
Entertainment Licensing Authority. Advertising revenue on tvb.com grew by 8%.

(b) Magazine Publishing
The price of TVB Weekly magazine was increased from HK$10 to HK$12 per issue in September 2005. This wa
an attempt to reduce the impact of substantially increased printing cost. The move was successful as the increase:
revenue per copy more than offset the slight decrease in circulation experienced as a result of the price increase.

Advertising sales were back on track in the second half of the year as a result of our success in fully staffing and re
organising the sales department. Though the full year advertising revenue was down by 13%, the strong performanc
in the second half of the year gave us confidence to deliver growth in 2006.
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Net profit recorded a 2% growth despite the drop in advertising revenue, due to savings in staff and promotional
expenses.

(c) Movie Investment
The movie “Perhaps Love”, in which the Group had invested, starring Takeshi Kaneshiro, Zhou Xun, Jacky Cheung
and Ji Jin-hee, opened in December 2005. The movie paid off both at the box office and in critical acclaim. Hong
Kong box office receipts were a respectable HK$14 million. A small profit was recorded for 2005. In addition, the
movie received various nominations in the Hong Kong Film Awards and was selected as the official closing film of
the 62nd Venice International Film Festival.

(d) Investment in GSTV

TVB, as a licensee of a free domestic programme service license, is not allowed to own more than 50% of any
domestic pay TV operator. The Government had granted a waiver to TVB in December 2004 to take up the shares
from Intelsat Hong Kong, LLC (“Intelsat”) when Intelsat left the pay TV venture, so as to provide time to identify and
conclude a share placement with a majority shareholder. During the year, TVB secured two investors to take up the
51% equity interest in GSTV. In April 2005, See Corporation Limited and Dr. Charles Chan Kwok Keung, acquired
520,747,500 and 21,255,000 shares respectively, representing approximately 49% and 2% equity interest in GSTV.
TVB continued to retain a 49% equity interest in GSTV.

GSTV’s wholly-owned subsidiary, GSB, operates a pay TV service which is distributed to homes in Hong Kong
through satellite and, since July 2005, through broadband television distribution systems provided by Hutchison
Global Communications Limited. It provides a basic pay TV package of over 40 channels to subscribers, which
includes six channels produced by TVB. In February 2006, GSTV announced a co-operation agreement with
PCCW Media Limited (“PCCW”) whereby a number of its channels will also be carried by the broadband television
distribution systems operated by PCCW or its affiliates, to homes in Hong Kong. This co-operation will increase the
number of homespassed substantially.

During the year, the Group shared HK$187 million (2004: HK$166 million) of losses of GSTV which was due to
increased advertising and promotion costs of its subsidiary, GSB, for its pay TV channels.

Digitalisation of Transmission Network

The Broadcasting Authority approved TVB’s investment plans on digital terrestrial television (“DTT”) programme
services on 17 December 2005. TVB shall be making an additional investment totalling more than HK$400 million
between 2006 and 2009 to provide a High Definition television (“HDTV”) channel commencing before the end of 2007.
The channel would include not fewer than 14 hours per week of “true” HDTV programmes (programmes originally
produced in the HDTV format) to be carried on the Single Frequency Network multiplex assigned to TVB. Also before
the end of 2007, in addition to the analogue broadcast of Jade and Pearl, TVB shall also provide a digital simulcast of
Jade and Pearl programmes in Standard Definition TV format on the Multiple Frequency Network. Plans of building
the DTT transmission network and upgrading field production, studio production and post-production facilities are being
finalised. To ensure the smooth implementation of TVB’s DTT plans, cooperation within the industry and with various

Government departments have been pursued through TVB’s active participation in Government-Industry working groups

and discussions with the bureaux and departments concerned.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

(a)

(b)

(c)

Important Events

(i) On 4 February 2005, Countless Entertainment (Taiwan) Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Primasia Development Co. Ltd. for the purchase of the remaining
30% of the issued share capital in LYP not held by the Group for a cash consideration of NT$900 million (approximately
HK$220.5 million). The transaction was approved by shareholders at an Extraordinary General Meeting held on 21
March 2005. As a result, the Group’s interest in the shareholding in LYP increased from 70% to 100%.

(i1) On 21 April 2005, TVB Satellite TV Holdings Limited (“TVB Satellite™), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a transaction with See Corporation Limited and Dr. Charles Chan Kwok Keung for the disposal of 49%
and 2% equity interests in GSTV, to See Corporation Limited and Dr. Charles Chan Kwok Keung respectively for a
total cash consideration of HK$350 million. Completion of the transaction was subject to, inter-alia, the settlement
of unpaid capital contribution by the Group to GSTV of HK$377 million. Completion of the first closing of the
transaction took place on [2 August 2005, and the second closing was completed on 28 February 2006.

Apart from those reported above, there was no other material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and associates during

the year and up to the date of the report.

Capital Assets, Investment, Liguidity and Debts

As at 31 December 2005, non-current assets of the Group stood at HK$2,522 million, a decrease from 31 December 2004
of HK$2,633 million. The net decrease was attributable to the recognition of goodwill on acquisition of the remaining 30%
equity interest in LYP, offset by the decrease in the net book value of property, plant and equipment, the shared losses of

associates and jointly controlled entities.

Cash and bank balances as at 31 December 2005 amounted to HK$980 million, an increase of 83% over last year end (2004:
HK$536 million). About 19% of the cash balance was maintained in overseas subsidiaries for their daily operation. Cash
and cash equivalents held by the Group were principally in Hong Kong Dollars, US Dollars and New Taiwan Dollars.

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits increased from HK$1,007 million to HK$!1.354 million which
represented a 34% increase from the position at the end of last year, reflecting a higher level of billing to customers.
Specific provision had been made, where appropriate, to cover any potential bad and doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables and accruals decreased from HK$728 million to HK$643 million which represented a [2%
decrease from the position at the end of last year. This was attributable to the reduction in the amount payable for &
financial asset (51% of GSTV) as a portion of the unpaid share capital amounting to HK$133 million together with the
subscription of new shares of HK$11 million was paid up in 2005.

All the loans and borrowings were fully repaid in 2005 and there was no borrowing as at 31 December 2005. The
gearing ratio as of 31 December 2004 was 2% which was measured by the ratio of total debts of HK$61 million against a
shareholders’ fund of HK$3,671 million.

As at 31 December 2005. capital commitments of the Group amounted to HK$183 million (2004: HK$199 million) which

represented a decrease of §%.

Contingent Liabilities
There were guarantees to the extent of HK$8.7 million (2004: HK$8.8 million) provided to bankers for banking facilities

granted to an investee company.
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In March 2005, the Group received additional profits tax assessment notices from the Inland Revenue Department of
Hong Kong (“IRD”) for the year of assessment 1998/99 for profits generated by the Group’s programme licensing
and distribution business carried out overseas. The total amount of the additional assessments of profits tax was
HK$98.277,000. The Group had been granted a holdover of these additional assessments.

Subsequently, in February 2006, the Group received additional profits tax assessment notices from IRD in respect of the
year of assessment 1999/2000 for profits generated by the Group’s programme licensing and distribution business carried
out overseas. The total amount of the additional assessments of profits tax was HK$98,576,000.

The Group has objected to these additional assessments. The Group believes that the objection is well-founded, and
is determined to defend the Group’s position vigorously. On this basis, the Group is of the view that no additional tax
provision is necessary.

(d) Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related Hedges
As at 31 December 2005, there was no exchange contract entered into by the Group with financial institutions to sell
forward foreign currencies in order to hedge against fluctuation for trade receipts from overseas customers (2004: HK$5.8
million). Consequently, there were no unrealised gains or losses arising from such forward contracts (2004: unrealised loss
of HK$0.5 million).

HUMAN RESOURCES
As of 31 December 2005, the Group employed, excluding Directors and freelance workers but including contract artistes and
staff in overseas subsidiary companies, a total of 4,519 (2004: 4,843) full-time employees.

About 26% of our manpower was employed in overseas subsidiaries and was paid on a scale and system relevant to their
localities and local legislations. For local employment, different pay schemes are operated for contract artistes, sales and
non-sales employees. Contract artistes are paid either on a per-show basis or by a package of shows. Sales personnel are
remunerated based on commission schemes. Non-sales personnel are remunerated on a monthly salary. Discretionary bonuses
may be awarded as an incentive for better performance. Qualified personnel received a discretionary bonus equivalent to a

sixteenth of their annual basic salaries in 2005.
No employee share option scheme was adopted by the Group during the year.

From time to time, the Group organises, either in-house or with vocational institutions, seminars, courses and workshops on

subjects of technical interest, such as industrial safety, management skills and other related studies, apart from sponsorship of

training programmes that employees may enrol on their own initiatives.




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2005.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS
The principal activities of the Company are terrestrial television broadcasting, together with programme production and other
broadcasting related activities. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are detailed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial

statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business and geographical segments is set out in Note 4 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS, APPROPRIATIONS AND RESERVES

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 35.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are set out in Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements on pages 72 to 73.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2005, calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$3,247,946,000 (2004: HK$2,618,142,000).

DIVIDENDS

An interim dividend of HK$0.25 per share, totalling HK$109,500,000, was paid on 29 September 2005. The Directors now
recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$1.30 per share for 438,000,000 issued shares in respect of the year ended 31
December 2005 to shareholders who are on the Register of Members on 24 May 2006.

DONATIONS
Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year amounted to HK$336,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 30.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year were:

Sir Run Run Shaw

Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang
Ms. Mona Fong

Mr. Louis Page

Dr. Chow Yei Ching

Mr. Ho Ting Kwan
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Mr. Chien Lee* } Appointed on 17 March 2005
Mrs. Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan
Mr. Lee Jung Sen* + Retired on 25 May 2005

Dr. Li Dak Sum*
Mr. Kevin Lo Chung Ping
Mr. Robert Sze Tsai To*

* Independent Non-executive Directors

The Alternate Directors during the year were:
Mr. Chien Lee (alternate to Mr. Lee Jung Sen) } Resigned on 25 May 2005
Mr. Anthony Hsien Pin Lee (alternate to

Mrs. Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan)

In accordance with Article 114(A) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Ms. Mona Fong, Dr. Li Dak Sum and Mr. Kevin
Lo Chung Ping retire by rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 24 May 2006 (“Annual General Meeting”).

DIRECTORATE AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Brief biographical details of Directors and Senior Management as at the date of this report are set out below:

Directors

Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. (Executive Chairman)

aged 98, is the President of the Shaw group of companies with substantial interests in the entertainment and movie industry.
Through the Shaw group. he holds a major interest in the share capital of the Company. He is one of the founding Directors
of the Company and became the Chairman in 1980. He is the husband of Ms. Mona Fong, the Deputy Chairperson of the
Company.

Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang, G.B.S., LL.D., J.P. (Executive Deputy Chairman)

aged 65, was appointed a Director of the Company in September 2003 when he also took up the position as Executive Deputy
Chairman. He is the Deputy Chairman of Transport International Holdings Ltd. and a director of Wing Lung Bank Ltd. Mr.
Leung has been active in public service for 30 years and he served as the Chairman of the Broadcasting Authority from 1997 to
2002. He is currently serving as Commissioner of Civil Aid Service and Pro-Chancellor of City University of Hong Kong.

Mona Fong (Deputy Chairperson)

aged 71, has been a Director of the Company since 1988 and appointed as Deputy Chairperson on 25 October 2000. Ms. Fong
is the Deputy Chairperson and Managing Director of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited, and Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Shaw group of companies. She is also the Chairperson of The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited, The
Shaw Prize Foundation Limited and The Sir Run Run Shaw Charitable Trust and member of the Board of Trustees of the Shaw
College of the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Ms. Fong is the wife of Sir Run Run Shaw, the Executive Chairman of the
Company.

Louis Page (Managing Director)
aged 56, was appointed a Director of the Company in 1987 and as Managing Director in September 1995. He is an executive
director of the Shaw group of companies.
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Dr. Chow Yei Ching, G.B.S.

aged 70, was appointed a Director of the Company in 2000. He is the Founder and Chairman of Chevalier Group, which
consists of two listed companies on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange — Chevalier International Holdings Limited and Chevalier
iTech Holdings Limited. He is also a non-executive director of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and Van Shung Chong
Holdings Limited. He was appointed The Honorary Consul of The Kingdom of Bahrain in Hong Kong and a Standing

Committee Member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Shanghai.

Ho Ting Kwan

aged 61, joined the Company in 1968 as Assistant Accountant. He was appointed General Manager — Television Broadcasting
in November 1995. He was the Group General Manager of the Company from 2002 to 2005 and was appointed a Director in
June 2003.

Chien Lee (Independent Non-executive Director)
aged 52, is a private investor. He is also a director of Hysan Development Company Limited and Swire Pacific Limited. He
has been appointed Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since March 2005. Mr. Lee is the nephew of Mrs. Lee.

Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan
aged 82, is the widow of the Founder of the Company, Mr. Lee Hsiao-Wo. Mrs. Lee became a Director of the Company in
1981. She is actively involved in Caritas, Hong Kong, a local charitable organization. Mrs. Lee is the aunt of Mr. Chien Lee.

Dr. Li Dak Sum, DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. (Independent Non-executive Director)
aged 835, is the Chairman of Sharp-Roxy (Hong Kong) Limited which markets “Sharp” products in Hong Kong and Mainland
China. Dr. Li is also the Chairman of various hotel operations in Singapore, Australia and New Zealand. He was appointed a

Director of the Company in 1995.

Kevin Lo Chung Ping
aged 69, joined the Company in 1966 as Project Engineer and as General Manager from 1978 to 1980. He was appointed a
Director in 1977. He is also a director of Gold Peak Industries (Holdings) Limited.

Robert Sze Tsai To (Independent Non-executive Director)

aged 65, was appointed a Director of the Company in June 2003. He is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales, and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and was a partner in an international firm
of accountants with which he practised for over 20 years. He is a non-executive director of a number of Hong Kong listed

companies. He is also a member of the Shanghai Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference.

Anthony Hsien Pin Lee (Alternate Director to Mrs. Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan)

aged 48, is a director of Hysan Development Company Limited and Lee Hysan Estate Company Limited, and also a director
and substantial shareholder of Australian-listed Beyond International Limited. He was appointed as Mrs. Lee’s alternate in
September 2002. He is the son of Mrs. Lee.

Senior Management

George Chan Ching Cheong

aged 53, first joined TVB’s Sales Department in 1975. He held the position of Controller (Marketing & Sales) from 1982 to
1989. He has had a successful career as an entrepreneur and as director of several prominent companies engaged in media,
telecommunication and technology before he rejoined TVB in November 2004 as Assistant Managing Director.
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Stephen Chan Chi Wan

aged 47, joined TVB in 1994 as Controller (Programme) and took on the added responsibilities of Controller (External Affairs)
in 1996. He was promoted to Assistant General Manager — Television Broadcasting in April 2002, and as General Manager —
Broadcasting in April 2004.

Cheong Shin Keong

aged 49, joined TVB in 1989. He has extensive experience in the advertising/marketing industry and contributes actively to
the professional development of marketing in Hong Kong through leading marketing industry bodies. He assumed the duties
of General Manager — Broadcasting in April 2004. He is responsible for marketing, business development and corporate
development matters.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

None of the Directors of the Company has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year,
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. No share options of the Company have been granted to
the Directors during the year.

The Company has entered into agreements with Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited for the lease of certain premises at
Shaw House, Clear Water Bay Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Such agreements have expired on 30 June 2005. The Executive
Chairman of the Company, Sir Run Run Shaw, is the Executive Chairman of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited, in which
he also has substantial attributed corporate interests. The Deputy Chairperson of the Company, Ms. Mona Fong, is the Deputy
Chairperson and Managing Director of Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited.

Apart from the above, no contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted

at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

As at 31 December 2005, the beneficial interests of the Directors and chief executive in the shares of the Company as recorded
in the register maintained under Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance were as follows:-

No. of Ordinary Shares of HK$0.05 Each

Percentage

Personal Family Corporate of Issued

Interests  Interests Interests Total Capital (%)

Sir Run Run Shaw - 1,146,000#  141,174,828%(a) 142,320,828 32.49%
Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan 602,144 - 16,701,000 (b) 17,303,144 3.95%
Mona Fong 1,146,000# - - 1,146,000 0.26%
Chien Lee 600,000 - - 600,000 0.14%
Dr. Li Dak Sum - - 300,000 (c) 300,000 0.07%
Louis Page 160,000 - - 160,000 0.04%
Dr. Chow Yei Ching 100,000 - - 100,000 0.02%

Notes: Duplication of shareholdings occurred between parties# shown above and between parties* shown above and below under “Substantial
Shareholders”.

(a) 113,888,628 shares were held by Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited and 27,286,200 shares were held by The Shaw Foundation Hong
Kong Limited, in which companies Shaw Holdings Inc. holds 74.58% and 100% equity interests respectively. Sir Run Run Shaw exerts
100% control over Shaw Holdings Inc. through The Sir Run Run Shaw Charitable Trust.
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(b} 10,377,000 shares were held by Trio Investment Corporation S.A., 1,581,000 shares were held by Crystal Investments Limited, 3,162,000
shares were held by Compass Inc. and 1,581,000 shares were held by Bonus Inc. and in respect of such shares only, directors of these

companies are all accustomed to act in accordance with the directions of Mrs. Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan.
(c) The shares were held by Roxy Property Investment Co. Ltd. in which Dr. Li Dak Sum holds a 100% equity interest.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. The Company or its subsidiaries did not grant to the Directors or chief
executive or their spouse or children under 18 years of age any rights to subscribe for shares or debentures of the Company or

any other body corporate.

Apart from the above, no interests or short positions were held or deemed or taken (under the Securities and Futures Ordinance)
to be held by any Directors or chief executive of the Company in the shares or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) as at 31 December
2005.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 December 2005, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section 336 of the Securities and Futures

Ordinance shows that the Company had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests (all being beneficial
interests), being 5% or more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in addition to those disclosed above in

respect of the Directors and chief executive.

No. of Ordinary Shares of Percentage of

HK$0.05 Each Issued Capital (%)

Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited 113,888,628* 26.00%
OppenheimerFunds, Inc. 25,154,600 (i) 5.74%
Marathon Asset Management Limited 26,288,000 (ii) 6.02%
The Shaw Foundation Hong Kong Limited 27,286,200%* 6.23%

Notes: Duplication of shareholdings occurred between parties* shown here and above under “Directors’ Interests”.
(i) Interests were held in the capacity as investment adviser to clients of OppenheimerFunds, Inc.
(ii) Interests were held in the capacity of investment manager.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save for the shares referred to above, no other person was recorded in
the register kept pursuant to Section 336 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance as having an interest or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of, the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance) which represented 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2005.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1)  The following transactions constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company made under the old Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules (before the amendments made on 31 March 2004) to which conditional waivers have been granted by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. (the “Stock Exchange”):
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a)

b)

On 19 May 1997 and 15 December 1997, the Company and Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited (“Shaw™), a
substantial shareholder of the Company entered into separate tenancy agreements, pursuant to which Shaw granted
to the Company tenancies of certain office and car parking spaces situated at Shaw House, Lot 220 Clear Water
Bay Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The term of the two tenancies commenced on 1 July 1997 and 1 November 1997
respectively and both expired on 30 June 2005. The amount of rental paid by the Company to Shaw during 2005 was
HK$8,866,000.

On 19 September 2003, TVBI Company Limited (“TVBI”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and ASTRO
Entertainment Networks Ltd. ("AENL”), an associate of the substantial shareholder of three of the Company’s non
wholly-owned subsidiaries, entered into a licensing agreement, pursuant to which TVBI would license to AENL
certain programmes on an exclusive basis for broadcast on free terrestrial television in Indonesia for a period of 2
years commencing from the earlier of 1 January 2004 or when AENL was able to secure the broadcast of programmes

on free terrestrial television in Indonesia prior to 1 January 2004. The income accrued by TVBI in 2005 was
HK$6,843,000 (US$880,000).

2) The following transactions constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company which are subject to the

requirements under the new Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules :-

a)

b)

c)

Since 28 October 2000, LYP, now a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has been providing Era
Communications Co. Ltd. (“Era”) with satellite equipment and technical services while Era has been providing LYP
with satellite relay programme services in Taiwan. On 1 March 2005, the parties entered into an agreement to renew
the arrangement for one year commencing on 1 January 2005 on similar terms and conditions with the insertion of
a new clause allowing either party to early terminate the agreement by giving one month notice. Under the renewal
agreement, the monthly fees payable by Era to LYP was HK$750,000 (NT$3,000,000) and by LYP to Era was
HK$375,000 (NT$1,500,000). All amounts payable under the renewal agreement included 5% sales tax. Upon Era
disposed all its shareholdings in LYP to a third party on 4 February 2003, Era ceased to be a connected party of the
Company after that date. The fees received by LYP from Era during the period from 1 January 2005 to 3 February
2005 was HK$764,000 (NT$3,163,000) and the fees paid by LYP to Era during the same period was HK$382,000
(NT$1,582,000).

On 16 April 1999, TVBI agreed to sub-lease part of the satellite transponder capacity to Era. The sub-lease agreement
was superseded by a revised agreement dated 13 January 2000 varying the monthly fee and the contract period
to commence on | January 2000 and expire on 31 March 2006. On 28 April 2001, TVBI and Era entered into a
supplemental agreement to the revised agreement, pursuant to which the parties agreed that the transponder capacity
leased from TVBI to Era would be reduced from 27 MHZ to 13.5 MHZ as from 1 March 2001. The fee received by
TVBI from Era for the period from 1 January 2005 to 3 February 2005 was HK$ 475,000 (US$ 61,000).

On 30 September 2004, TVBI and MEASAT Broadcast Network Systems Sdn. Bhd. (“MBNS”) entered into an
agreement, pursuant to which TVBI would supply television programmes to MBNS for broadcast in Malaysia and
Brunei on a channel owned and operated by MBNS for a period of 5 years from 1 October 2004 to 30 September
2009 on an exclusive basis. On 14 October 2004 and 14 February 2005, separate addendum to the agreement
were entered into between the parties for the clarification of the base month upon which the subscribers guarantee

would be calculated and for the increase of revenue sharing receivable by TVBI for revenue generated from hotel

and commercial establishments respectively. The income accrued by TVBI during 2005 was HK$68,386,000
{MYR33,291,000).
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d) On 30 September 2004, TVBI acting as an agent of LYP and MBNS entered into an agreement, pursuant to which
TVBI would supply a Mandarin language channel to MBNS for broadcast in Ma]ayéia and Brunei on the pay
television services operated by MBNS and its affiliated company for a period of 5 years from | October 2004 to
30 September 2009 on an exclusive basis. On 14 October 2004 and 14 February 2005, separate addendum to the
agreement were entered into between the parties for the clarification of the base month upon which the subscribers
guarantee would be calculated and for the increase of revenue sharing receivable by LYP for revenue generated from
hotel and commercial establishments respectively. The income accrued by LYP during 2005 was HK$25,410,000
(MYR12,370,000).

e) On 30 September 2004, TVB Satellite TV Entertainment Limited (“TVBSE”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and MBNS entered into an agreement, pursuant to which TVBSE would supply two Mandarin language
channels to MBNS for broadcast in Malaysia and Brunei on the pay television services operated by MBNS and its
affiliated company for a period of 5 years from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2009 on an exclusive basis. On
14 February 2005, an addendum to the agreement were entered into between the parties for the increase of revenue
sharing receivable by TVBSE for revenue generated from hotel and commercial establishments. The income accrued
by TVBSE during 2005 was HK$36,625,000 (MYR17,830,000).

f)  On 30 September 2004, MBNS and TVBSE entered into an agreement, pursuant to which MBNS appointed TVBSE
as its advertising agent responsible for the recruitment of advertisements and sponsorship for certain channels
broadcast by MBNS in Malaysia and Brunei for a period of 5 years from 1 October 2004 to 30 September 2009. The
income accrued by TVBSE during 2005 was HK$33,688,000 (MYR16,400,000).

g) On 30 September 2004, TVBO Facilities Limited (“TVBOF”) and TVB Satellite Broadcasting Limited (“TVBSB”),
both are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company, entered into separate agreement with MBNS, pursuant to which
MBNS appointed TVBOF and TVBSB to provide management services to MBNS for the period from 1 October 2004
to 30 September 2009 at a fixed amount for every period of 12 months. The aggregate management fee accrued by
TVBOF and TVBSB during 2005 was HK$30,320,000 (MYR14,760,000). |

All the Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the above transactions described in paragraphs 1(a) to (b}
and 2(a) to (g) above and confirmed that these transactions have been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business, (ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than those available to or from independent thirc
parties, (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders as a whole; and that the aggregate amount of each transaction described in paragraphs 1 (a) to (b
for 2005 has not exceeded the relevant cap amount for each transaction as set out in the conditional waivers granted by the

Stock Exchange.

The Company’s auditors have also reviewed the above transactions described in paragraphs 1(a) to (b) and 2(a) to (g) anc
confirmed in its letter to the Directors that:

(i) the transactions have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors;
(ii) the transactions are in accordance with the Company’s pricing policies as laid down in the relevant agreement:

governing the transactions;
(iii) the transactions have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing the

transactions; and
(iv) the transactions have not exceeded the cap amount for each transaction allowed by the Stock Exchange as disclosed i1

the previous announcements.
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3) On 11 March 2004, TVB (Australia) Pty. Ltd. (“TVBA”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Celestial
Television Networks Ltd. (“CTNL”), an associate of the substantial shareholder of three of the Company’s non wholly-
owned subsidiaries, entered into an agreement pursuant to which CTNL would license the Celestial Movies channel to
TVBA. As a result of the subsequent addenda entered into between the parties, the term of the arrangement was for fifteen
months from 15 March 2004 with an option to renew which term was extended for twelve months until 14 June 2006.
Under the agreement, TVBA agrees to pay CTNL a fixed unit cost per subscriber (which includes both residential and
commercial subscribers) to the Celestial Movies channel or the package of channels to which the Celestial Movies channel
is included. The licence fee paid by TVBA to CTNL during 2005 was HK$3,138,000 (A$531,000).

4)  On 23 December 2004, Art Limited (“Art”), a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and Celestial Productions
Limited (“Celestial”), an associate of the substantial shareholder of three of the Company’s non wholly-owned
subsidiaries, entered into the Sales and Purchase Agreement, pursuant to which Art agrees to sell to Celestial the right to
distribute a Chinese language musical picture (the “Picture”) which is commissioned and financed by Art and produced
by an independent third party via pay television channels transmitted by all means of technology throughout the world
(except the Mainland China) in perpetuity with effect on 1 August 2005 or such other date as may be agreed by the parties
provided that it is no later than the completion of the Picture. Income accrued by Art in 2005 was HK$9,000,000.

5) On 4 February 2005, Countless Entertainment (Taiwan) Co. Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired
from Primasia Development Co. Ltd., a substantial shareholder of a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, 30%
of the issued share capital of LYP for a cash consideration of NT$900,000,000 (approximately HK$220,500,000). Upon
completion of the transaction, LYP became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES
The Company has not redeemed any of its ordinary shares during the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors as at 22 March
2006, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is held by the public at all times. As at 22 March 2006, there
were 292 shareholders on the Company’s register of shareholders.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
During the year, the percentage of the Group’s purchases and sales attributable to its five largest suppliers and five largest
customers are both less than 30%.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance practices during the year are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 23 to
29 of this Annual Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The responsibilities of the Audit Committee and the work done during the year are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 27 to 28 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer

themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

Run Run Shaw

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2006
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Maintaining high standards of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always been one of the Company’s core
objectives. The Company believes that conducting business in an open, responsible manner serves its long-term interests and
those of the shareholders.

The Board monitored the Company’s progress on corporate governance practices throughout the year under review. Apart
from regular meetings, circulars were issued to Directors and Senior Management to ensure awareness of the best corporate
governance practices.

The Company adopted its own Code on Corporate Governance on 31 December 2005 which complied with all the code
provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”), save that the Chairman is not subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years (code provision A.4.2). Pursuant to Article 114(D) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Chairman is exempted from retirement by rotation. The Board considers that this departure is well-founded
as the Chairman is the founder of the Company, and his wealth of experience is essential to the Board and contributes to the
continued stability of the Company’s business.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE
The Company adopts the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for Directors and Senior Management in their dealings in the Company’s securities.

The Company made specific enquiries of each Director and member of the Senior Management, and each confirmed that he/she
had fully complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2005.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible

manner. The Board is the highest governing body of the Company.

The Board has 11 Directors and one Alternate Director. The list of Directors as at 31 December 2005 was as follows:

Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. Executive Chairman

Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang, G.B.S., LL.D., J.P. Executive Deputy Chairman

Mona Fong Deputy Chairperson

Louis Page Managing Director

Dr. Chow Yei Ching, G.B.S. Non-executive Director

Ho Ting Kwan Non-executive Director

Chien Lee Independent Non-executive Director
Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan Non-executive Director

Dr. Li Dak Sum, DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. Independent Non-executive Director
Kevin Lo Chung Ping Non-executive Director

Robert Sze Tsai To Independent Non-executive Director
Anthony Hsien Pin Lee Alternate Director to Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of their collective
and individual responsibilities to all shareholders for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are managed, controlled

and operated.
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All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the Company’s affairs. Duties of the Board include:

(a)
(b)

planning the strategic direction of the Company; and
monitoring the performance of Management.

The Board exercises a number of reserved powers which include:

(@)
(b)
(©)
(d
(e)
(0
(@
(h)

approving significant changes in accounting policies, or capital structure;

approving public announcements and the financial statements;

approving major acquisitions, disposals and major capital projects;

approving material borrowings and any issuing, or buying back, of equity securities;
setting group remuneration policy;

approving the annual budget;

setting the dividend policy; and

approving treasury policy.

The Company has three Independent Non-executive Directors, at least one of whom has appropriate financial management

expertise, which is in compliance with the Listing Rules. Each Independent Non-executive Director gives the Company an

annual confirmation of his independence, and the Company considers these Directors to be independent under the guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Directors have no relationship (including financial, business, family or other relationship) among themselves, save for the

following:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)
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the husband-wife relationship between Sir Run Run Shaw and Ms. Mona Fong, as set out on page 15 of the Report of the
Directors of this Annual Report;

the directorship of Dr. Chow Yei Ching in Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited, as set out on page 16 of the Report of the
Directors of this Annual Report;

the father-son relationship between Mr. Lee Jung Sen (who retired as a Director on 25 May 2005) and Mr. Chien Lee (who
was appointed as a Director on 17 March 2005); and

Mrs. Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan is the aunt of Mr. Chien Lee and the mother of Mr. Anthony Hsien Pin Lee.
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BOARD MEETINGS
The full Board met six times during the year under review. The attendance of Directors at the Board Meetings and the Board
Committees (Executive Committee, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee) Meetings is set out in the table below:

Meetings Attended/Held
Directors Board Exechive Aud.it Remune.ration
Committee Commiittee Committee
Executive Directors
Sir Run Run Shaw 6/6 7
Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang 6/6 717
Louis Page 6/6 777
Non-executive Directors
Mona Fong 6/6 717 1/t
Dr. Chow Yei Ching 4/6
Ho Ting Kwan 6/6
Chien Lee 5/5 11 1/1
Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan 6/6*
*2 meetings were attended by Alternate Director
Lee Jung Sen (retired on 25 May 2005)
**3 meetings were attended by Alternate Director B 053 o
Dr. Li Dak Sum 6/6 2/2
Kevin Lo Chung Ping 6/6 717
Robert Sze Tsai To 5/6 2/2 171

At the Board Meetings the Directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for the Company, monitored financial
performance and discussed the annual and interim results, as well as other significant matters.

CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR
Sir Run Run Shaw, the Chairman since 1980, and Mr. Louis Page, Managing Director since 1995, have segregated and clearly
defined roles set out in the Company’s Code on Corporate Governance.

The Board has formalised the functions delegated by the Board to the Management and reviews such arrangements on a
periodic basis. The Management is charged with the following responsibilities:

(a) implementing and reporting to the Board on the Company’s strategies;

(b) overseeing the realisation by the Company of the objectives set by the Board;

(¢) providing all such information to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board to monitor the performance of the
Management; and

(d) discharging duties and authority as may be delegated by the Board.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 August 2005. All members are Non-executive Directors and the majority
are independent. The Committee is chaired by Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Chien Lee and the other members are
Ms. Mona Fong and Mr. Robert Sze Tsai To.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration. The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
Company’s website.

The Remuneration Committee had its first meeting in December 2005 to review the discretionary bonuses paid to the Executive
Directors and the Senior Management for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Details of the Directors’” and Senior Management’s emoluments are set out on pages 82 to 83 of the Notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

The main elements of the Company’s remuneration policies are:

. no individual should determine his or her own remuneration;

. remuneration should be set which is commensurate with the pay levels in the market;

* remuneration should be able to attract and retain individuals with appropriate background, skills, knowledge and

experience, relevant to the business and industry that the Group operates in.

In line with our policy that no individual should determine his or her own remuneration, the proposed fees for Directors were

recommended by the Board and approved by our shareholders at the annual general meetings.

In determining the remuneration of Executive Directors and Senior Management, the remuneration of comparable positions in
the market, including local and regional companies of comparable size, complexity and business scope, are referenced. This is

consistent with our policy to pay remuneration which is commensurate with the pay levels in the market.
No share options of the Company have been granted to Directors during the year.

None of the Directors of the Company has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one year,

without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS
The appointment of a new Director is a matter for consideration and decision by the full Board. As delegated by the Board, the
Executive Committee is responsible for nominating suitably qualified candidates to be Directors.

Sir Run Run Shaw is the Chairman, Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang, Ms. Mona Fong, Mr. Louis Page and Mr. Kevin Lo Chung
Ping are members of the Executive Committee. The Executive Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the

Company’s website.
The Board appointed Mr. Chien Lee, the Alternate Director to Mr. Lee Jung Sen since 1995, to be an Independent Non-

executive Director of the Company on 17 March 2005, in consideration of Mr. Chien Lee’s experience in the Company’s affairs
and his valuable contributions to the Board during the term of his alternate directorship.
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DIRECTORS’ TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Non-executive Directors are appointed for a specific term for around three years. All Directors retire from office by rotation
and are subject to re-election at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Pursuant to Article 114(D) of the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Chairman is exempted from retirement by rotation.

The Company’s Articles of Association provide that Directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the
first annual general meeting after their appointment, and shall be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

Management performs a review of the remuneration to the Group’s auditors on an annual basis. The fees for audit services have
been approved by the Audit Committee, whilst the fees for non-audit services are estimates made by Management. A summary
of fees for audit and non-audit services is as follows:

Fees for audit services Fees for non-audit services
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$ 000

Company 880 750 353 285
Subsidiaries 2,603 2,346 2,051 560
Total 3,483 3,096 2,404 845
Fees payable to

PricewaterhouseCoopers,
the principal auditors 3,062 2,689 2,404 845

Non-audit services rendered to the Group included principally professional fee in relation to the tax challenge from the IRD in
respect of preceding years’ tax assessments.

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board is responsible for presenting financial information of the Group in a clear, balanced and timely manner in the form
of financial statements that give a true and fair view of the Group’s state of affairs. The Board also carries the responsibility to
select the most appropriate accounting policies for the Group. In this regard, the Board has adopted the Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards as promulgated by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group have been prepared on a going concern basis, assuming the continued operation of the
business.

The Board is also vested with the responsibility to disseminate to shareholders and the public any price-sensitive information in
a form of announcements and circulars, in accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements prepared by Management before formal approval by the Board and
oversees the financial reporting system of the Company.
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The Audit Committee was established in 1999. As of 31 December 2005, all members of the Committee were Independent Non-
executive Directors, with Mr. Robert Sze Tsai To as the chairman, Dr. Li Dak Sum and Mr. Chien Lee as members of the Audit
Committee. On 22 February 2006, Dr. Li Dak Sum tendered his resignation as a member of the Audit Committee and Mr. Ho

Ting Kwan, a Non-executive Director, was appointed as a member of the Audit Committee on the same date.

The Audit Committee has the following key responsibilities:

*  making recommendations on the appointment, reappointment and removal of external auditors and considering the terms
of such appointments

¢ developing and implementing policies on the engagement of external auditors for non-audit services

*  monitoring the integrity of the financial statements, annual and interim reports and the auditors’ report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s financial position

*  ensuring that the Management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an effective internal control system

* reviewing the external auditors’ management letter and any questions raised by the auditors to Management, and

Management’s response
The Audit Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2005. There was no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of the external auditors. ‘

The Audit Committee has reviewed with Management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the interim financial statements and the annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005 before such statements were presented to the Board of '
Directors for approval.

The reporting responsibilities of PricewaterhouseCoopers, the Company’s auditors, are set out in the Auditors’ Report on page
31 of this Annual Report.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The system of internal controls has been designed to safeguard assets from inappropriate use, maintain proper accounts and
ensure effective operation of the Company’s business and compliance with regulations. Management is directly responsible for
implementing the strategies and policies adopted by the Board, and for managing all of the Company’s activities including the
operation of the internal control system.

The heads of the Finance team and the operating units perform regular financial and operational reviews of the Company, its
subsidiaries and associates, as well as other reviews as required. Summaries of major audit findings and control weaknesses, if
any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee. The heads of the Finance team and the operating units monitor the follow-up actions

agreed upon in response to its recommendations.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Company adopts a policy of disclosing relevant information to shareholders in a timely manner. The Company discloses
information in the form of paid announcements in an English and a Chinese newspaper and makes available the information
on its corporate website. Printed copies of the Annual and Interim Reports and Circulars are sent to all shareholders. The
Company’s annual general meeting allows Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. Separate resolutions were

proposed for each issue by the Chairman and were voted on by poll at the annual general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT continued)

Annual general meeting proceedings are reviewed periodically to ensure that the Company follows best corporate governance
practices. A notice of annual general meeting is sent to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual general meeting,
setting out details of each proposed resolution, voting procedures and other relevant information. The procedures for demanding
and conducting a poll are explained during the meeting. Voting or poll results are published in the newspapers and posted on the
Company’s website on the business day following the annual general meeting.

The Company provides corporate information, including published announcements, circulars, annual reports, to shareholders
and the public via the Company’s website at www.tvb.com.

On behalf of the Board

Run Run Shaw

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2006




FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL REVIEW
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005
Turnover (HK$ m) 3,265 3,162 3,311 3,817 4,177
Profit before income tax (HK$ m) 663 684 485 902 1,420
Income tax expense (HK$ m) 11 90 25 152 232
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company (HK$’m) 589 590 441 719 1,180
Earnings per share (HKS) 1.35 1.35 1.01 1.64 2.69
Property, plant and equipment (HK$’m) 1,521 1,998 2,167 2,050 1,896
: Leasehold land (HK$ m) 133 168 198 193 188
Intangible assets (HKS$'m) - - 63 55 161
: Interest in associates (HK$ m) 19 26 238 280 246
: Interest in jointly controlled entities (HK$’m) 105 81 23 19 -
Investment securities (HK$ m) 5 5 4 4 -
Loans to investee companies (HK$ m) 11 11 13 14 7
- Deferred income tax assets (HK$’'m) - - 24 19 24
Current assets (HK$'m) 2,434 2,009 1,988 2,200 2.800 |
Current liabilities (HK$ m) (1,002) {905) (1,112) (855) (749 ‘

3,226 3,393 3,606 3,979 4,573

Share capital (HK$ m) 22 22 22 22 22
| Reserves (HK$'m) 3,073 3,252 3,274 3,649 4,360
Shareholders’ funds (HK$'m) 3,095 3,274 3,296 3,671 4,382
Minority interest (HK$ m) - - 84 117 23
Long-term provisions (HK$’m) - - 62 1 -
Long-term borrowings and retirement benefit obligations (HK$’m) 78 63 68 65 18
Deferred income tax liabilities (HK$ 'm) 53 56 96 125 150

3,226 3,393 3,606 3,979 4,573

The figures in this table have been restated to reflect the adoption of new / revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards.
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AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TELEVISION BROADCASTS LIMITED

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements on pages 32 to 97 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of Directors and auditors

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view. In preparing consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those consolidated financial statements and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
Directors in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to

the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of
information in the consolidated financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 December 2005 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2006
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
(Restated)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,896,100 2,049,844
Leasehold land 6 188,416 192,984
Intangible assets 7 161,003 55,342
Interest in associates 9 245,516 279,546
Interest in jointly controlled entities 10 - 18,722
Available-for-sale financial assets 11 3 -
Investment securities 12 - 3,705
Loans to investee companies 13 6,676 14,263
Deferred income tax assets 22 24,358 18,592
SRR 2522072 2,632,998
Current assets
Programmes, film rights and movies 452,586 452,652
Stocks 14 11,430 11,588
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits 15 1,353,966 1,007,123
Other investments 16 - 189,432
Tax recoverable 2,015 3,034
Pledged bank deposits 17 236 234
Bank deposits maturing after three months 35,289 9,550
Cash and cash equivalents 944,670 526,299
e 2,800,092 2199912
Total assets 5,322,264 4.832.910
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital 18 21,900 21,900
Other reserves 19 700,132 698,989
Retained earnings
- Proposed final dividend 31 569,400 350,400
- Others 3,090,315 2,599,357
4,381,747 3,670,646
Minority interest 23,320 116,550
Totalequity 4,405,067 . 3787,196
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 21 - 48,683
Deferred income tax liabilities 22 149,740 125,370
Retirement benefit obligations 23 18,503 16,215
Long-term provisions 24 - 1,045
168,243 191,313
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (continued)

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005

Note 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000

(Restated)

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables and accruals 20 643,232 727,635
Current income tax liabilities 104,680 99,865
Borrowings 21 - . 12,040
Short-term provisions 24 1,042 14,861

e 748954 . 854,401

Towlliabilities ! 017,197 1045714
Total equity and liabilities 5,322,264 4,832,910
Net current assets 2,051,238 1,345,511
Total assets less current liabilities 4,573,310 3,978,509

Louis Page Run Run Shaw

Director Director




BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2005
Note 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
ASSETS (Restated)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,633,100 1,758,379
Leasehold land 6 188,416 192,984
Investment in subsidiaries 8 510,460 376,040
Interest in associates 9 144,069 133,397
S 2,476,045 2,460,800
Current assets
Programmes and film rights 324,354 372,008
Stocks 14 1,702 1,694
Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits 15 903,442 642,718
Cash and cash equivalents 676,705 252,869
e 1906203 1,269,289
Total assets 4,382,248 3,730,089
EQUITY
Capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s equity holders
Share capital 18 21,900 21,900
Other reserves 19 712,144 712,144
Retained earnings
- Proposed final dividend 31 569,400 350,400
- Others . 2,608,546 2,197,742
Totalequity 3911990 3,282,186
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Deferred income tax liabilities 22 118,562 123,530
S 118,562 123,530
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables and accruals 20 258,514 247,680
Current income tax liabilities 93,182 66,011
Short-term provisions 24 - 10,682
e 51,69 . 324,373
Total liabilittes 470258 447,903
Total equity and liabilities 4,382,248 3,730,089
Net current assets 1,554,507 944916
Total assets less current liabilities 4,030,552 3,405,716

Louis Page Run Run Shaw

Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenues

Selling, distribution and transmission costs
General and administrative expenses
Other operating (expenses)/income

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Operating profit
Finance costs

Share of losses of
Jointly controlled entities
Associates

Profit before income tax
Income tax expense
Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company
Minority interest

Earnings per share for profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company during the year

Dividends

Note 2005 2004
HK$°000 HKS$’000
4 4,176,590 3,816,936
25 (1,791,612) (1,841,449)
2,384,978 1,975,487
4 38,962 58,220
25 (451,923) (450,258)
25 (490,969) (512,948)
25 (22,042) 10,890
16 148,778 -
1,607,784 1,081,391
27 (956) (7,0006)
30) (6,099)
(187,197) (166,402)
1,419,601 901,884
28 (232,354) (152,312)
1,187,247 749,572
29 1,180,019 719,415
7,228 30,157
1,187,247 749,572
30 HKS$2.69 HK$1.64
31 678,900 438,000
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005
Attributable to equity holders
of the Company
Share Other Retained Minority
capital reserves earnings interest Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Balance at | January 2004, as previously
reported as equity 21,900 694,371 2,579,276 - 3,295,547
Balance at 1 January 2004, as previously
separately reported as minority interest - - - 83,785 83,785
Balance at 1 January 2004, as restated 2190 694371 2,579,276 83,785 3,379,332
Currency translation differences - 6,084 - 2,608 8,692
Exchange recognised directly in equity - (2,881) 2,881 - -
Net income recognised directly in equity - 3,203 2,881 2,608 8,692
Profit for the year - - 719,415 30,157 749,572
Total recognised income for 2004 S - 3203 722296 32,965 758,264
Transfer - 1,415 (1,415) - -
2003 final dividend paid - - (262,800) - (262,800)
2004 interim dividend paid - - (87,600) - (87,600)
_________ o AAS  GSIBLS) o (350,400)
Balance at 31 December 2004 21,900 698,989 2,949,757 116,550 3,787,196
Balance at 1 January 2005, as restated 21,900 _________ 698,9892,949757116,550 - 3,787,196
Currency translation differences - (9,018) - 5,207 (3,811)
Net (expense)/ income recognised
directly in equity - (9,018) - 5,207 (3,811)
Profit for the year - - 1,180,019 7,228 1,187,247
Total recognised (expense)/ income for 2005 - | 9,018 | 1,180,019 1 12435 | 1,183,436
Transfer - 10,161 (10,161) - -
2004 final dividend paid - - (350,400) - (350,400)
2005 interim dividend paid - - (109,500) - (109,500)
Acquisition of minority interest in a
subsidiary (Note 7) - - - (105,665) (105,665)
_________ oo Jodel o 470061)  (105,665) | (565,565)
Balance at 31 December 2005 21,900 700,132 3,659,715 23,320 4,405,067
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2005

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations
Interest paid
Hong Kong profits tax paid
Overseas taxation paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Increase in bank deposits maturing after three months
Increase in loans to a jointly controlled entity
Loan repayments received from an investee company
Decrease in amount due from an associate
Acquisition of minority interest in a subsidiary
Proceeds from sale of a jointly controlled entity
Proceeds from sale of an available-for-sale financial asset
Proceeds from sale of a financial asset at fair value

through profit or loss

Investment in an associate

Investment in a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities

Net cash inflow before financing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from short-term bank loans
Repayments of long-term bank loans, other loans and
obligations under finance leases
Repayments of short-term bank loans
Increase in pledged bank deposits
Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

Note 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
32(a) 1,501,951 1,285,497
(1,115) (10,423)
(144,572) (3,266)
(63,426) (9,848)
e 1292838 1,261,960
(113,092) (143,147)
(25,739) (4,776)
. (2,016)
7,393 -
. 5,319
(221,613) -
4,541 -
2,771 -
263,726 -
9(a) (142,495) (45,200)
(144,347) -
813 2,469
13,500 2,386
_________________________ (354,542) (184.965)
U 938,296 1076995
- 2,338
(58,385) (5,268)
(2,338) (499,115)
(2) (6)
(459,900) (350,400)
_________________________ (520,625) (852,451)
417,671 224,544
526,299 300,224
700 1,531
944,670 526,299
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting

Standards (HKFRS). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention,

as modified by the available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, which are carried at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting

estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates

are significant to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in Note 3.

The adoption of new/revised HKFRS
In 2005, the Group adopted the new/revised standards and interpretations of HKFRS below, which are relevant to its

operations. The 2004 comparatives have been amended as required, in accordance with the relevant requirements.

HKAS 1

HKAS 2

HKAS 7

HKAS 8

HKAS 10
HKAS 16
HKAS 17
HKAS 21
HKAS 23
HKAS 24
HKAS 27
HKAS 28
HKAS 31
HKAS 32
HKAS 33
HKAS 36
HKAS 38
HKAS 39
HKFRS 3

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates
Borrowing Costs

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Investments in Associates

Investments in Joint Ventures

Financial Instruments: Disclosures and Presentation
Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Business Combinations




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

—

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The adoption of new/revised HKASs 1, 2, 7, 8, 10, 16, 21, 23, 24, 27, 28, 31 and 33 did not result in substantial

changes to the Group’s accounting policies. In summary:

- HKAS | has affected the presentation of minority interest, share of net after-tax results of associates and other
disclosures.

- HKASs2,7,8, 10,16, 23,27, 28, 31 and 33 had no material effect on the Group’s policies.

- HKAS 21 had no material effect on the Group’s policy. The functional currency of each of the consolidated
entities has been re-evaluated based on the guidance to the revised standard. All the Group entities have the same

functional currency as the presentation currency for respective entity financial statements.
- HKAS 24 has affected the identification of related parties and some other related-party disclosures.

The adoption of revised HKAS 17 has resulted in a change in the accounting policy relating to the reclassification
of leasehold land from property, plant and equipment to operating leases. The up-front prepayments made for the
leasehold land are expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or where
there is impairment, the impairment is expensed in the income statement. In prior years, the leasehold land was

accounted for at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.

The adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 has resulted in a change in the accounting policy relating to the classification of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets.

The adoption of HKFRS 3, HKASs 36 and 38 has resulted in a change in the accounting policy for goodwill. Until 31
December 2004, goodwill was:

- amortised on a straight-line basis over a period ranging from 5 to 10 years; and
- assessed for an indication of impairment at each balance sheet date.

In accordance with the provisions of HKFRS 3 (Note 1.6):

- the Group ceased amortisation of goodwill from 1 January 2005;

- accumulated amortisation as at 31 December 2004 has been eliminated with a corresponding decrease in the cost

of goodwill; and

- from the year ended 31 December 2005 onwards, goodwill is tested annually for impairment, as well as when

there is indication of impairment.

All changes in the accounting policies have been made in accordance with the transitional provisions in the respective
standards. All standards adopted by the Group require retrospective application other than:

- HKAS 21 - prospective accounting for goodwill and fair value adjustments as part of foreign operations;

- HKAS39 - does not permit to recognise, derecognise and measure financial assets and liabilities in accordance
with this standard on a retrospective basis. The Group applied the previous Statement of Standard Accounting
Practice (“SSAP”) 24 “Accounting for investments in securities” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants to investments in securities for the 2004 comparative information. The adjustments required
for the accounting differences between SSAP 24 and HKAS 39 are determined and recognised at 1 January 2005;

and




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coninued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.1 Basis of preparation {Continued)

- HKFRS 3 - prospectively on or after 1 January 2005.

(a) The effects of the adoption of revised HKAS 17 are as follows:

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$’000

Decrease in property, plant and equipment (188,416) (192,984)
Increase in leasehold land 188,416 192,984

There was no impact on basic earnings per share from the adoption of revised HKAS 17.

(b) The effects of the adoption of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 38 are as follows:

2005
HK$°000
Decrease in other operating expenses arising from
the cessation of amortisation of goodwill 5,598
HKS$
Increase in basic earnings per share 0.01
(¢) The effects of the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39 are as follows:
2005
HK$°000
Decrease in investment securities, at cost (21,478)
Increase in available-for-sale financial assets, at cost 21,478

There was no impact on basic earnings per share from the adoption of HKASs 32 and 39.

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKASs and HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective. The adoption of such HKASs and HKFRSs will not result in substantial changes to the Group’s

accounting policies.

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Capital disclosure !

HKAS 19 (Amendment) Actuarial gains and losses, group plan and disclosures

HKAS 21 (Amendment) Net investment in a foreign operation *

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Cash flow hedge accounting of forecast intragroup transactions 2
HKAS 39 (Amendment) The fair value option 2

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 4 (Amendment) Financial guarantee contracts ?

HKFRS 7 ) Financial instruments: disclosures ’

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2006.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made
up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Company, directly or indirectly, controls the composition of the Board
of Directors, controls more than half the voting power or holds more than half of the issued share capital.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The
cost of an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill,
If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is
recognised directly in the income statement.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable.

(b) Associates and jointly controlled entities

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying
a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

A jointly controlled entity is under a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an
economic activity which is subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has unilateral control over

its economic activity.

Interests in associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for by the equity method of accounting and is

initially recognised at cost.

The Group’s share of its associates’ and jointly controlled entities’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate and jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in the associate
and jointly controlled entity, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate and jointly controlled entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates and jointly controlled entities. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates and jointly controlled entities have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continced)

1

42

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.2

1.3

14

Consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates and jointly controlled entities (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet the interest in associates and jointly controlled entities is stated at cost less
provision for impairment losses. The results of the associates and jointly controlled entities are accounted for by

the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivables.

Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting, the Group has determined that business segments be

presented as the primary reporting format and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, sales are based on the country in which the customer is located. Total

assets and capital expenditure are based on where the assets are located.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow hedges

or qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equity instruments held at fair value through profit or
loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation difference on non-monetary items, such as

equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are included in the fair value reserve in equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities (none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the

presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a separate component of equity.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholder’s
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised in the income statement as part of

the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity on or after 1 January 2005 are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Goodwill and fair value
adjustments arising on acquisitions prior to 1 January 2005 are expressed in the acquiring company’s functional
currency and reported using the exchange rate at the date of these acquisitions.

1.5 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, comprising buildings, leasehold improvements, studio, broadcasting and transmitting
equipment, furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Freehold land is not depreciated. Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient to write off
their costs less accumulated impairment losses over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal
annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%-5%

Leasehold improvements Over the unexpired term of the lease
Studio, broadcasting and transmitting equipment 7% - 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5% - 33.3%

Motor vehicles 10% - 25%

Improvements are capitalised and depreciated over their expected useful lives to the Group.
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 1.7).

1.6 Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of acquisition. Goodwill
on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates and jointly
controlled entities is included in investments in associates and jointly controlled entities. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity

include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.7

1.8

Impairment of assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation, which are at least tested annually for impairment
and are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

Investments

From 1 January 2004 to 31 December 2004:
The Group classified its investments in securities, other than subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities, as

investment securities and other investments.

(a) Investment securities

Investment securities were stated at cost less any provision for impairment losses. The carrying amounts of
individual investments were reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess whether the fair values had declined
below the carrying amounts. When a decline other than temporary had occurred, the carrying amount of such
securities would be reduced to its fair value. The impairment loss was recognised as an expense in the income
statement. This impairment loss was written back to the income statement when the circumstances and events that
led to the write-downs or write-offs ceased to exist and there was persuasive evidence that the new circumstances
and events would persist for the foreseeable future.

(b) Other investments

Other investments were carried at fair value. At each balance sheet date, the net unrealised gains or losses arising
from the changes in fair value of other investments were recognised in the income statement. Profits or losses
on disposal of other investments, representing the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying

amounts, were recognised in the income statement as they arose.

From 1 January 2005 onwards:
The Group classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading, and those designated at fair value through
profit or loss at inception. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or if so designated by management. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they are either held
for trading or are expected to be realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market. They arise when the Group provides money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.8 Investments (Continued)
(b) Loans and receivables (Continued)

intention of trading the receivable. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included
in trade and other receivables in the balance sheet (Note 1.11).

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in
any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the
investment within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial
assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Investments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value
whereas available-for-sale financial assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or loss’ category are included in
the income statement in the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair
value of non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity. When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments are included in the income statement
as gains or losses from investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based on current bid prices. Available-for-sale financial assets that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured, are carried at cost

less accumulated impairment.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the securities are impaired.
If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment

losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

1.9 Programmes, film rights and movies

Programmes are stated at cost less amounts expensed and any provision considered necessary by management.
Cost comprises direct expenditure and an appropriate proportion of production overheads. The cost of programmes
is apportioned between domestic terrestrial market and overseas licensing and distribution market. In the case of
the former, the cost is expensed on first transmission, and in the latter, the cost is expensed on first distribution to
licensees. The cost of programmes for satellite channels is expensed in accordance with a formula computed to write

off the cost over a maximum of three transmissions.

Film rights are stated at cost less amounts expensed and any provision considered necessary by management. Film
rights are expensed in accordance with a formula computed to write off the cost over the contracted number of
transmissions,
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.9 Programmes, film rights and movies (Continued)

Movies invested by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation of released movies is calculated at rates sufficient to write off the total cost of production in relation to
expected revenues over a maximum period of three years. Unreleased movies are valued at cost less provision for

impairment losses.

1.10 Stocks

Stocks, comprising decoders, tapes, video compact discs, digital video discs and consumable supplies, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of video compact discs and digital video discs is calculated on a
weighted average basis whereas the cost of other stocks is calculated on a first in first out basis. Net realisable value
is determined on the basis of anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling expenses.

1.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount of the

provision is recognised in the income statement.

1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments with a maturity
of three months or less from the date of investment, and bank overdrafts and short-term loans repayable within three
months.

1.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

1.14 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and
securities exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the

liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.15 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements. Taxation rates
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date are used to determine deferred income tax.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on interest in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

1.16 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for

the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution plans throughout the world, the assets of
which are generally held in separate trustee - administered funds.

All permanent staff, temporary staff and full time artistes signed in individual names (excluding singers and serial
artistes), whose employment period reaches 60 days or more (collectively referred to as “eligible members”) and
located in Hong Kong are entitled to participate in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”).
The contributions to the MPF Scheme made by the Group for permanent staff joined prior to 1 June 2003
comprise mandatory contributions and voluntary contributions. The mandatory contribution is calculated at 5% of
individual’s “relevant income” with a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per month and the voluntary contribution
is calculated at 10% of individual’s basic salary less the mandatory contribution. The Group’s contribution for
permanent staff joined after 1 June 2003, full time artistes and temporary staff is 5% of individual’s “relevant
income” with a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per month. “Relevant income” includes salaries, wages, paid
leave, fees, commissions, bonuses, gratuities, and allowances (excluding housing allowance/benefits, any
redeemed payment and long service payment). Employer’s voluntary contributions shall be refunded to the Group
according to the vesting scale when the eligible members leave employment prior to vesting fully in the MPF
Scheme.

The retirement schemes which cover employees located in overseas locations, except for Taiwan, are defined
contribution schemes at various funding rates that are in accordance with the local practice and regulations. The
employees located in Taiwan are members of a defined benefit retirement scheme prior to 1 July 2005. Following
the promulgation of a new pension ordinance on 1 July 2005, the employees located in Taiwan are entitled to elect
to remain as the sole members of the defined benefit retirement scheme or to become members of both the defined
benefit retirement scheme and a defined contribution retirement scheme. By electing for the latter, the service

lives of employees under the defined benefit retirement scheme are being frozen at 30 June 2005. All employees

joining on or after 1 July 2005 have to join as members of the defined contribution retirement scheme.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.16 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plans assets, together with
adjustments for unrecognised actuarial gains or losses and past service costs. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that
have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension liability.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions in excess

of the greater of 10% of the value of plan assets or 10% of the present value of the defined benefit obligation are
recognised in the income statement over the employees’ expected average remaining working lives.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately as income, unless the changes to the pension plan are conditional
on the employees remaining in service for a specified period of time (the vesting period). In this case, the past-
service costs are amortised on a straight-line basis over the vesting period.

1.17 Provisions for onerous contracts

The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from a contract are
less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract.

1.18 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable
that outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

1.19 Revenue recognition

Advertising income net of agency deductions is recognised when the advertisements are telecast.

Income from licensing of programme rights is recognised evenly over the contract period or upon delivery of the
programmes concerned in accordance with the terms of the contracts. Income from box office receipts are recognised
when movies are exhibited and the right to receive payment is established. Distribution income from movies are

recognised upon delivery of the movies.

Subscription income from operation of satellite and subscription television networks is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the contract period which generally coincides with the timing when the services are rendered. Unearned
subscription fees received from subscribers are recorded as subscriptions received in advance under trade and other

payables and accruals in the balance sheet.
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1 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.19 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Income from video tape and disc renting and sale of magazines are recognised on delivery of products. Income
from sale of animation productions is recognised progressively in accordance with the stage of completion of the
production. Income from other services, which includes programme/commercial production income, merchandising
income, management fee income, facility rental income and other miscellaneous income, is recognised when the
services are rendered.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method.

1.20 Leases (as the lessee)
(a) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

(b) Finance leases

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of
the leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in current and non-current borrowings. The
interest element of the finance cost is recognised in the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

1.21 Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if

(a) directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with the Group; (ii) has an interest in the Group that gives it significant influence over the Group;
or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management personnel of the Group;

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any individual referred to in (a) to (d) above;

(f) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significant influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d) and (e) above.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

1.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements in
the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders.

1.23 Comparatives

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in the current

year.

Financial risk management

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it 1o a variety of financial risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk and price

risk), credit risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

(©

Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures, primarily with respect to the Hong Kong dollars. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, assets and liabilities recognition and net investments in foreign operations, are in a currency that is

not the subsidiaries’ functional currency.

The Group has certain investments in foreign operations, the net assets of which are exposed to foreign currency

risk.

The Group manages this risk by initially seeking contracts effectively denominated in Hong Kong dollars where
possible and economically favorable to do so. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign currency risk
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is required. The Group does not conduct any foreign

currency speculative activities.
(i1) Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because investments held by the Group are classified on the
consolidated balance sheet as available-for-sale financial assets. The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. It’s credit risk is mitigated by its combination of cash and
credit sales. For credit sales, the Group has no significant concentration of credit risk due to its diverse customer base.
Credit risk is managed by formulating a credit policy for credit checks, credit reviews and monitoring procedures that

include a formal collection process.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.
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(]

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. Estimates and assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a) Impairment of goodwill

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been impairment of goodwill in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 1.6. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made by management
on the future operation of the business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying the value-in-use
calculations.

(b) Trade receivables

The aged debt profile of trade receivables is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure that the trade receivables are
collectible and follow up actions are promptly carried out if the agreed credit periods have been exceeded. However,
from time to time, the Group may experience delays in collection. Where recoverability of trade receivables are called
into doubts, specific provisions for bad and doubtful debts are made based on credit status of the customers, the aged
analysis of the trade receivables and write-off history. Certain receivables may be initially identified as collectible,
yet subsequently become uncollectible and result in a subsequent write-off of the related receivable to the income
statement. Changes in the collectibility of trade receivables for which provisions are not made could affect the results
of operations.

(c) Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of property, plant and equipment in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated at the time the asset
is acquired based on historical experience, the expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service output of the assets. The Group also performs
annual reviews on whether the assumptions made on useful lives continue to be valid. Such reviews take into account
the technological changes, prospective economic utilisation and physical condition of the assets concerned.

(d) Impairment of non-current asset

If a triggering event occurs indicating that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable, an assessment
of the carrying amount of that asset will be performed. Triggering events include significant adverse changes in the
market value of an asset, changes in the business or regulatory environment, or certain legal events. The interpretation

of such events requires judgment from management with respect to whether such an event has occurred.

Upon the occurrence of triggering events, the carrying amounts of non-current assets are reviewed to assess whether
their recoverable amounts have declined below their carrying amounts. The recoverable amount is the present value
of estimated net future cash flows which the Group expects to generate from the future use of the asset, plus the
asset’s residual value on disposal. Where the recoverable amount of non-current assets is less than its carrying value,

an impairment loss is recognised to write the assets down to its recoverable amount.

51
.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

3

52

Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(d) Impairment of non-current asset (Continued)

(&)

The impairment assessment is performed based on the discounted cash flow analysis. This analysis relies on factors
such as forecasts of future performance and long-term growth rates and the selection of discount rates. If these
forecasts and assumptions prove to be incorrect or circumstances change, write down of the carrying value of the

non-current assets may be required.

Based on the most recent assessments of recoverable amount, management is of the opinion that as at 31 December
2005, the non-current assets are recoverable at the amounts at which they are stated in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded or anticipated, such differences will impact the current income

tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

Turnover, revenue and segment information

The Group is principally engaged in terrestrial television broadcasting with programme production, programme licensing

and distribution, overseas satellite pay TV operations, channel operations and other related activities.

Turnover comprises advertising income net of agency deductions, licensing income, subscription income, as well as

income from video tape and disc rentals, sale of animation productions, sale of magazines, programmes/commercial

production income, merchandising income, management fee income, facility rental income and other service fee income.

Other revenues comprise mainly interest income and other rental income.

The amount of each significant category of revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
Turnover
Advertising income, net of agency deductions 2,681,524 2,597,471
Licensing income 790,725 767,060
Subscription income 413,947 370,940
Others (note) 336,990 116,096
4,223,186 3,851,567
Less: Withholding tax (46,596) (34,631)
4176390 3816936
Other revenues (note)
Interest income 25,151 20,294
Others 13,811 37,926
38,962 58,220

4,215,552 3,875,156
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4  Turnover, revenue and segment information (Continued)

Note:

In prior years, the Group reported the revenues generated from the production of tailor-made sponsorship programmes
on a net basis, and such net revenue was set off against the cost of production for these programmes. In prior years,
income generated from commercial production, merchandising, talent management, facility rental and other services
(“Miscellaneous Income”) were included as other revenues.

In 2005, the Group is of the opinion that it is more appropriate to reclassify the above revenues and income. As a result,
revenues from production of tailor-made sponsorship programmes and the Miscellaneous Income are now classified under
Turnover. These classification changes were made from 1 January 2005 and have no effect on the Group’s profit.

If the revenues for the year ended 31 December 2004 were reclassified on the same basis as above, the Group’s turnover
would increase by HK$137,884,000, cost of sales would increase by HK$115,652,000 and other revenue would decrease
by HK$22,232,000, with no change to the Group’s profit. Therefore, the Group’s turnover, cost of sales and other revenues
for the year ended 31 December 2004 would have been HK$3,954,820,000, HK$1,957,101,000 and HK$35,988,000
respectively.

Primary reporting format - business segments
The Group is organised on a worldwide basis into five main business segments:

Terrestrial television broadcasting - free to air broadcasting of television programmes and commercials and production of
programmes

Programme licensing and distribution - provision of television programmes to homevideo markets and overseas
broadcasters

Overseas satellite pay TV operations - provision of satellite pay television services to subscribers in USA, Europe and
Australia

Channel operations - compilation and distribution of television channels in Mainland China, Taiwan, Hong Kong and other
countries

Other activities - animation production, merchandising services, website portal, magazine publication, movie investment
and other related services

The Group’s inter-segment transactions mainly consist of licensing of programmes and film rights and provision of

services. Licensing of programmes and film rights were entered into at similar terms as that contracted with third parties.
The services provided were charged on a cost plus basis or at similar terms as that contracted with third parties.
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Turnover, revenue and segment information (Continued)

Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and results for the year by business segments is as follows:

Turnover (note)
External sales
Inter-segment sales

Segment results (note)

Gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Finance costs

Share of losses of
Jointly controlled entities
Associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

2005
Terrestrial  Programme Overseas

television  licensing and satellite pay Channel Other
broadcasting  distribution TV operations  operations activities  Elimination Total
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000
2,230,312 594,065 247,177 984,023 121,013 - 4,176,590
5,877 99,056 - 14,291 6,712  (125,936) -
2,236,189 693,121 247,177 998,314 127,725  (125,936) 4,176,590
859,160 391,028 28,789 194,429 (15,501) 1,101 1,459,006
148,778
(956)
i : : (30) : (30)
- - (187,197) - (187,197)
1,419,601
(232,354)
1,187,247

Note: There were no new activities at their initial stage of operations (i.e. not more than five years since commencement

of commercial operations) for the year ended 31 December 2005.

Other segment terms included in the income statement are as follows:

Depreciation

Amortisation of leasehold land

Impairment of goodwill

186,203
4,568

6,994

12,318

52,950

5,894

1,911

260,376
4,568
5,894
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Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)

2004
Terrestrial ~ Programme Overseas
television  licensing and satellite pay Channel Other
broadcasting  distribution TV operations  operations activities  Elimination Total
HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
Turnover (note (a))
External sales (note (b)) 2,005,790 581,817 213,834 907,560 107,935 - 3,816,936
Inter-segment sales 1,142 97,426 183 14,912 8,295  (121,958) -
2,006,932 679,243 214,017 922,472 116,230 (121,958) 3,816,936
Segment results (note (a)) 519,227 375,081 (7,010) 171,403 21,015 1,675 1,081,391
Finance costs (7,006)
Share of losses of
Jointly controlled entities - - - (6) (6,093) (6,099)
Associates - - - (166,402) - (166,402)
Profit before income tax 901,884
Income tax expense (152,312)
Profit for the year 749,572

Notes:

(a) The above segments included activities at their initial stage of operations (i.e. not more than five years since

commencement of commercial operations) and an analysis of their respective turnover and results is as follows:

(b)

Turnover - - 142,350 - 26,142 168,492

Segment results - - 24,547 - 10,132 34,679

In respect of the terrestrial television broadcasting segment, revenues generated from the production of tailor-made
sponsorship programmes were reported on a net basis, and such net revenue was set off against the cost of production
for these programmes in prior years. If these revenues were reclassified to turnover, the turnover for external sales
under this segment would increase by HK$137,884,000, with no overall effect on the segment results. On this basis,
the turnover for external sales for 2004 would have been HK$2,143,674,000.

Other segment terms included in the income statement are as follows:

Depreciation 191,786 6,712 9,647 53,133 3,930 265,208

Amortisation of leasehold land 4,567 - - - - 4,567

Amortisation of goodwill - - 5,598 1,799 - 7,397
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Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2005 and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2005 are

as follows:
Terrestrial ~ Programme Overseas
television  licensing and  satellite pay Channel Other
broadcasting  distribution TV operations  operations activities Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’°000
Segment assets ‘ 3,502,242 221,896 117,145 1,040,418 125,319 5,007,020
Interest in associates 144,069 - - 101,447 - 245,516
Available-for-sale financial assets - 3 - - - 3
Loans to investee companies - 6,676 - - . 6,676
Unallocated assets 63,049
Total assets 5,322,264
Segment liabilities 258,514 94,996 58,259 174,948 19,184 605,901
Payable for financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss - - - 56,876 - 56,876
Unallocated liabilities 254,420
Total liabilities 917,197
Capital expenditure 65,734 4,123 2,520 155,976 687 229,040
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4  Turnover, revenue and segment information (Continued)

Primary reporting format - business segments (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31 December 2004 and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 December 2004 are

as follows:
Terrestrial Programme Overseas
television  licensing and  satellite pay Channel Other
broadcasting  distribution TV operations  operations activities Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Segment assets 3,183,901 195,608 141,685 621,002 147,191 4,289,387
Interest in associates 133,397 - - 146,149 - 279,546
Interest in jointly controlled entities - - - 3,814 14,908 18,722
Investment securities - 3 - 2,164 1,538 3,705
Loans to investee companies - 14,263 - - - 14,263
Other investments - - - 189,432 - 189,432
Unallocated assets 37,855
Total assets 4,832,910
Segment liabilities 258,362 88,972 60,744 141,655 20,591 570,324
Payable for other investments - - - 189,432 - 189,432
Unallocated liabilities 285,958
Total liabilities 1,045,714
Capital expenditure 111,512 5,953 1,445 20,164 4,073 143,147

Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant and equipment, leasehold land, intangible assets, stocks, receivables
and operating cash, and mainly exclude tax recoverable, deferred income tax and investments.

Segment liabilities comprise operating liabilities and exclude items such as income tax and borrowings.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and equipment (Note 5) and intangible assets (Note 7).
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Turnover, revenue and segment information (Continued)

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments

Although the Group’s five business segments are managed on a worldwide basis, sales are generated in eight main
geographical areas:

Hong Kong - terrestrial television broadcasting with programme production, distribution of television channels, website

portal, magazine publication and movie investment.
Taiwan - cable television channel services
USA and Canada - licensing and distribution of television programmes and satellite pay TV operations
Australia - licensing and distribution of television programmes and satellite pay TV operations
Europe - licensing and distribution of television programmes and satellite pay TV operations
Mainland China - licensing and distribution of television programmes and channels and satellite TV channel services
Malaysia and Singapore - licensing and distribution of television programmes

Other countries - principally licensing and distribution of television programmes

An analysis of the Group’s turnover and segment results for the year by geographical segments is as follows:

Turnover Segment results
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Geographical segments:

Hong Kong 2,560,672 2,281,105 940,891 587,331
Taiwan 743,834 703,831 133,586 155,050
USA and Canada 209,149 208,667 106,197 106,873
Australia 67,784 60,510 (6,023) (11,933)
Europe 97,080 78,953 17,275 (19,119)
Mainland China 117,225 104,922 65,311 56,571
Malaysia and Singapore 337,726 337,056 182,978 184,095
Other countries 43,120 41,892 18,791 22,523

4,176,590 3,816,936 1,459,006 1,081,391

Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 148,778

1,607,784

Sales are based on the location in which the customers are located. There are no sales between the geographical segments.
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4  Turnover, revenue and segment information (Continued)

Secondary reporting format - geographical segments (Continued)

Total assets Capital expenditure

2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

Hong Kong 3,994,853 3,388,477 69,453 115,523

Taiwan 680,433 540,143 155,901 20,006

USA and Canada 101,990 123,375 2,610 4,975

Australia 11,614 16,113 325 473

Europe 72,966 88,195 735 913

Mainland China 26,836 21,806 - 1,229

Malaysia and Singapore 93,321 78,750 - -

Other countries 25,007 32,528 16 28
5,007,020 4,289,387 229,040 143,147

Interest in associates 245,516 279,546

Interest in jointly controlled entities - 18,722

Available-for-sale financial assets 3 -

Investment securities - 3,705

Loans to investee companies 6,676 14,263

Other investments - 189,432

Unallocated assets 63,049 37,855

5,322,264 4,832,910

Total assets and capital expenditure are allocated based on where the assets are located.
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5  Property, plant and equipment

(a) Group
Studio,
broadcasting  Furniture,
Freehold and fixtures
land and Leasehold transmitting and Motor
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
Cost
At 1 January 2004 1,044,682 96,697 1,475,698 603,340 37,773 3,258,190
Exchange differences 2,377 1,591 9,420 2,135 310 15,833
Additions 1,706 1,998 109,251 25,632 4,560 143,147
Transfers - - 4,072 (4,072) - -
Disposals - (5,154)  (16,601) (9,925) (2,319)  (33,999)
At 31 December 2004 LOBT6S 95132 1SSLSA0 617110 40324 3383171
At 1 January 2005 1,048,765 95,132 1,581,840 617,110 40,324 3,383,171
Exchange differences 823 1,004 (562) (1,104) 79 240
Additions 1,046 1,660 77,503 25,741 7,142 113,092
Cost adjustment (note (1)) (3,500) - - - - (3,500)
Transfers 16,629 (16,629) 631 (631) - -
Disposals - (10,196)  (54,742) (14,289) (2,720)  (81,947)
At 31 December 2005 1063763 70971 1,604,670 626,827 44,825 3,411,056
Accumulated depreciation
and impairment
At 1 January 2004 36,394 67,644 807,005 149,491 29,976 1,090,510
Exchange differences 173 1,406 7,465 1,410 271 10,725
Charge for the year 38,169 11,669 157,000 54,190 4,180 265,208
Transfers - - 1,596 (1,596) - -
Written back on disposals - (5,121)  (15,943) (9,733) (2,319)  (33,116)
At31 December 2004 74736 75,598 957,123 193,762 32,108 1333327
At 1 January 2005 74,736 75,598 957,123 193,762 32,108 1,333,327
Exchange differences (289) 608 (1,180) (775) 96 (1,540)
Charge for the year 37,896 12,509 153,317 52,023 4,631 260,376
Transfers 15,211 (15,211) 202 (202) - -
Written back on disposals - (10,196)  (52,285) (12,018) (2,708)  (77,207)
At 31 December 2005 127554 63308 1057077 232790 34,127 1514956
Net book value
At 31 December 2005 936,209 7,663 547,493 394,037 10,698 1,896,100
At 31 December 2004 974,029 19,534 624,717 423,348 8,216 2,049,844
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5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)

Notes:

(1) During the year, a settlement agreement was entered into between the Company and the contractor under which
it was agreed that a sum of HK$3,500,000 be deducted from the total contract sum to release the contractor from
the obligation to rectify the outstanding defects in respect of the construction of buildings located in TVB City.

(ii) The net book value of leased assets at 31 December 2005 comprised furniture, fixtures and equipment of HK$nil
(2004: HK$1,000).

(iii) At 31 December 2005, no items under property, plant and equipment were pledged for any borrowings. At
31 December 2004, property, plant and equipment with net book value amounting to HK$109,894,000 were
pledged as security for the Group’s short-term loans and long-term borrowings.

(iv) Property, plant and equipment comprise freehold land outside Hong Kong at cost of HK$74,992,000 (2004:
HK$ 74,195,000).
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5  Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(b) Company

Studio,
broadcasting  Furniture,
and fixtures
Leasehold transmitting and Motor
Buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$’000
Cost
At | January 2004 921,192 14,186 1,042,755 494,796 26,765 2,499,694
Additions 1,652 - 91,979 14,257 3,623 111,511
Transferred from subsidiaries - - - 5 - 5
Disposals - - (7,459) (5,175) (2,319)  (14,953)
At 31 December 2004 922844 14186 1127275 503883 28069 2.596257
At 1 January 2005 922,844 14,186 1,127,275 503,883 28,069 2,596,257
Additions 888 - 45,538 13,766 5,542 65,734
Cost adjustment (note) (3,500) - - - - (3,500)
Transferred from/(to) subsidiaries - - (210) 630 - 420
Disposals - (10,196)  (38,490) (6,262) (50)  (54,998)
At 31 December 2005 920,232 3,990 1,134,113 512,017 33,561 2,603,913

Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2004 27,636 14,186 518,682 79,604 20,414 660,522
Charge for the year 36,964 - 111,930 39,586 3,306 191,786
Transferred from subsidiaries - - - 3 - 3
Written back on disposals - - (7,008) (5,106) (2,319) (14,433)
AU31 December 2004 1 64600 14186 623604 114087 21401 837878
At 1 January 2005 64,600 14,186 623,604 114,087 21,401 837,878
Charge for the year 36,626 - 107,794 38,009 3,774 186,203
Transferred from/(to) subsidiaries - - (210) 430 - 220
Written back on disposals - (10,196)  (37,062) (6,180) (50) (53,488)
At31 December 2003 L 101226 3990 694126 146346 25125 970813
Net book value
At 31 December 2005 819,006 - 439,987 365,671 8,436 1,633,100

At 31 December 2004 858,244 - 503,671 389,796 6,668 1,758,379
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5

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
(b) Company (Continued)

Note:

During the year, a settlement agreement was entered into between the Company and the contractor under which it
was agreed that a sum of HK$3,500,000 be deducted from the total contract sum to release the contractor from the
obligation to rectify the outstanding defects in respect of the construction of buildings located in TVB City.

Leasehold land

The Group’s interests in leasehold land represent prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are analysed

as follows:
Group and Company
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
In Hong Kong held on:
Leases of between 10 to 50 years 188,416 192,984
Opening net book value
- as previously reported - -
- reclassification of leasehold land - 197,551
- as currently reported 192,984 -
192,984 197,551
Amortisation (Note 25) (4,568) (4,567)
Closing net book value 188,416 192,984
Cost 200,977 200,977
Accumulated amortisation (12,561) (7,993)

Closing net book value 188,416 192,984




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contined)

7  Intangible assets
Group
Goodwill
HK$°000
At 1 January 2004
Cost 64,866
Accumulated amortisation (2,127)
Net book amount 62,739
Year ended 31 December 2004
Opening net book amount 62,739
Amortisation expense (Note 25) (7,397)
Closing net book amount 55,342
At 31 December 2004
Cost 64,866
Accumulated amortisation (9,524)
Net book amount 55,342
Year ended 31 December 2005
Opening net book amount 55,342
Acquisition of minority interest in a subsidiary (note (a)) 115,948
Impairment expense (note (b) and Note 25) (5,894)
Exchange differences (4,393)
Closing net book amount 161,003
At 31 December 2005
Cost 166,897
Accumulated impairment (5,894)
Net book amount 161,003
Notes:

(a) On 21 March 2003, the Group acquired the remaining 30% interest in Liann Yee Production Co. Ltd. (“LYP”) from
the minority shareholder at a cash consideration of NT$900 million, plus direct cost relating to the acquisition of
NT$2.7 miilion (totalling NT$902.7 million or HK$221,613,000). The excess of the cost over the fair value of the
30% of the net identifiable assets of LYP, amounting to NT$472 million (HK$115,948,000), has been recognised as

goodwill.

(b) The impairment expense arose in respect of the Group’s publishing business in Taiwan as it continues to be in a loss
making position.
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Intangible assets (Continued)
Impairment tests for goodwill
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units (CGUs) identified according to country of operation and

business segment.

A segment-level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented below:

2005
Overseas
satellite pay Channel
TV operations  operations Total

HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000

Europe 49,448 - 49,448
Taiwan - 111,555 - 111,555
49,448 111,555 161,003
2004
Overseas
satellite pay Channel
TV operations  operations Total

HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000

Europe 49,448 - 49,448
Taiwan - 5,894 5,894
49,448 5,894 55,342

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year period. The growth rate does not
exceed the long-term average growth rate in which the CGU operates.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations

Overseas
satellite pay Channel
TV operations  operations
Europe Taiwan
Gross margin 42% 35%
Growth rate -6% 2%
Discount rate 11% 11%

These assumptions have been used for the analysis of each CGU within the business segment.

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance and its expectations for the market
development. The weighted average growth rates used are consistent with the forecasts included in industry reports. The
discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant segments.
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Investment in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note (a))
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note (b))

Notes:

Company
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000
600 600
509,860 389,360
- (13,920)
510,460 376,040

(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and interest free, and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) The amounts due to subsidiaries were unsecured, interest free and not repayable within twelve months from the

balance sheet date.

Details of the subsidiaries are listed in Note 38.

Interest in associates

Share of net assets
Unpaid capital contributions (note (2))

Loan to an associate (note (b))
Interest receivables from an associate (note (b))

Unlisted shares, at cost

Notes:;

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
157,727 333,599 -
(56,280) (187,450) - -
101,447 146,149 - -
115,564 115,564 115,564 115,564
28,505 17,833 28,505 17.833
245,516 279,546 144,069 133,397
533,300 521,975 - -

(a) The amount represents the unpaid capital contributions to an associate, Galaxy Satellite TV Holdings Limited
(“GSTV”) which is unsecured and interest free. Capital contributions of HK$131,170,000 together with the
subscription of new shares of HK$11,325,000 (totalling HK$142,495,000) were paid during the year. The remaining
portion of the unpaid capital contributions would be paid in March 2006 in accordance with the time schedule

stipulated under sale and purchase agreement of shares of GSTV dated 21 April 2005.

(b) The loan to an associate is unsecured and carries interest at 8% per annum compounded annually. Details of the terms

of repayment are disclosed in Note 36(e).

The carrying amount of the loan to an associate approximates its fair value.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Coninued)

9 Interest in associates (Continued)

Details of the associates are listed below:

Place of Principal activities Particulars of Percentage of

Name incorporation  and place of operation  issued shares held interest in ownership

TVB3 Network Company Thailand Television production Ordinary shares of 40%
Limited and programming Baht10 each

service in Thailand

Galaxy Satellite TV Hong Kong Investment holding in Ordinary shares of 49%
Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 each
Galaxy Satellite Hong Kong Domestic pay television Ordinary shares of #49%
Broadcasting Limited programme service in HKS$1 each
Hong Kong

# an associate held indirectly by the Group

Summary of the Group’s share of financial information on associates is as follows:

Loss for
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues the year
HK$°000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000

2005 361,022 203,295 157,727 71,007  (187,197)

2004 437,238 103,639 333,599 39,259  (166,402)

10 interest in jointly controlied entities

Group
2008 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 .
Share of net assets - 3,814
Loan to a jointly controlled entity (note (a)) 20,653 20,993
Provision for impairment (note (b)) (20,653) (6,085)
- 18,722
Unlisted shares, at cost 14,165 74,007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10 Interest in jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Notes:

(a) The loan to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured and interest free, and has no fixed terms of repayment.

(b) Investment cost and loan to a jointly controlled entity were fully provided as at 31 December 2005.

Details of the jointly controlled entities are listed below:

Place of Principal activities Percentage of
Name incorporation and place of operation interest in ownership
Hsin Chi Broadcast Co. Ltd.* Taiwan Satellite digital television 40%
broadcasting services in Taiwan ‘
LEEMER A% K The People’s Internet web portal in 50%
HRAHE Republic of China Mainland China :
* The jointly controlled entity was sold at a gain of HK$623,000 during the year.
Summary of the Group’s share of financial information on jointly controlled entities is as follows:
Loss for
Assets Liabilities Equity ~ Revenues the year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000
2005
Hsin Chi Broadcast Co. Ltd. - - - - (30)
HEHMAEHESEEERAR
(note (b) above) - - - R
- - (30)
2004
Hsin Chi Broadcast Co. Ltd. 3,823 9 3,814 67 (6)
LS ESEEEERAE 12,587 12,587 - 2,979 (6,093)
16,410 12,596 3,814 3,046 (6,099)
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11 Available-for-sale financial assets

Beginning of the year (Notel(c) and Note 12)
Exchange differences

Write off of investiments (Note 12)

Disposals

Provision for impairment (note)

End of the year

Available-for-sale financial assets include the following:

Unlisted equity securities - Canada

Group
2005
HK$°000

21,478

75
(17,773)
(1,538)
(2,239)

Note: The impairment expense arose in respect of the Group’s investment in companies which have been in a continued

loss making position or in the process of liquidation.

12 Investment securities

Unlisted equity securities, at cost (Note 1{c))
Provision for impairment

The carrying amounts of investment securities approximate their fair values.

13 Loans to investee companies

Group
2004
HK$’000

21,478
(17,773)

3,705

Group

2005

2004

Loans to investee companies

Provision for impairment

HK$’°000

6,676

HK$°000

52,210
(37,947)

6,676

14,263

The loans to the investee companies are unsecured and interest free, and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for an
amount of HK$6,676,000 (2004: HK$8,271,000) which carries interest at 2% per annum above the Canadian Prime Rate.

The provision was made by the Group for the amounts considered irrecoverable.

The carrying amounts of loans to investee companies approximate their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

14 Stocks

At 31 December 2005 and 2004, all stocks are stated at costs, which approximate their fair values.

15 Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Receivables from:
Associates 202,748 25,902 200,480 24,009
An investee company - 2,167 - -
Related parties 39,949 48,349 - -
Trade receivables (note (a)) 892,172 841,758 615,642 578,267
Less: Provision for impairment of receivables (68,031) (66,885) (41,531) (39.694)
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits (note (b)) 263,139 155,832 128,851 80,136
Tax reserve certificates 23,989 - - -
1,353,966 1,007,123 903,442 642,718

Notes:

(a) The Group operates a controlled credit policy and allows an average credit period of forty to sixty days to the
majority of the Group’s customers who satisfy the credit evaluation of the Group. Cash on delivery, advance

payments or bank guarantees are required from other customers of the Group.

(b) Other receivables include an amount of HK$86,275,000 receivable from See Corporation Limited being the balance
of the proceeds from the sale of the 51% interest in GSTV. The amount was subsequently received in full on 28
February 2006.

At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the aging analysis of the trade receivables including trading balances due from associates,
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an investee company and related parties is as follows:

Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Current 405,941 403,890 221,636 235,670
1-2 months 241,864 209,821 195,282 162,361
2-3 months 142,271 131,528 116,742 105,021
3-4 months 107,689 65,386 86,728 43,756
4-5 months 49,499 29,430 41,613 23,830
Over 5 months 185,343 66,897 154,121 31,128
1,132,607 906,952 816,122 601,766

Trade receivables due from:
Third parties 892,172 841,758 615,642 578,267
Associates, an investee company and related parties 240,435 65,194 200,480 23,499

Non-trading amounts due

from associates and related parties 2,262 11,224 - 510
1,134,869 918,176 816,122 602,276
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15

Trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits (Continued)

Except for the amounts due from associates, there is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables, as the
Group has a large number of customers, internationally dispersed.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, prepayments and deposits approximate their fair values.

The Group has recognised a loss of HK$6,720,000 (2004: HK$421,000) for the impairment of its trade receivables during
the year ended 31 December 2005.

Other investments

On 16 September 2004, the Group entered into a deed of agreement with Intelsat Hong Kong LLC (“Intelsat”™), the then
51% shareholder of GSTV under which Intelsat agreed to transfer its 51% interest in GSTV to the Group free of any
payment.

As the Group is restricted from holding 50% or more of the voting interest in GSTV, a waiver was granted by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (*HKSAR”) to the Company for a period of twelve months
from 28 December 2004 to secure an independent party to acquire the 51% interest transferred from Intelsat. As such,
the Group had accounted for the unpaid capital contributions in relation to Intelsat’s investment in GSTV, which at 31
December 2004 amounted to HK$189,432,000, as other investments. An equivalent amount was recognised as an other
payable in respect of the unpaid capital contributions (Note 20).

On 21 April 2005, 49% and 2% interests in GSTV were sold to See Corporation Limited and Dr. Charles Chan Kwok
Keung respectively for a total cash consideration of HK$350 million (the “Disposal”). The transaction was completed
on 12 August 2005 subject to the settlement of unpaid capital contributions by the Group to GSTV of HK$376,882,000,
of which HK$263,726,000 was settled in September 2005. The remaining balance of HK$113,156,000, which includes
unpaid capital contributions under interest in associates of HK$56,280,000 (Note 9) and payable for financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of HK$56,876,000 (Note 20), would be settled in March 2006. The Disposal resulted in a gain
of HK$148,778,000.

Bank deposits

At 31 December 2005, the Group had pledged bank deposits of HK$236,000 (2004: HK$234,000) to secure certain credit
facilities granted to a subsidiary of the Group. The carrying amounts of bank deposits approximate their fair values.

Share capital

Number of
ordinary shares Nominal
of HK$0.05 each value
HK$’000
Authorised:
At 1 January 2004 and 2005 and 31 December 2005 1,300,000,000 65,000
Issued and fully paid:
At 1 January 2004 and 2005 and 31 December 2005 438,000,000 21,900
7
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18 Other reserves

(a)

72

Group

Capital
Share General Capital Legal  redemption
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  Translation Total
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
Balance at 1 January 2004 602,026 70,000 864 7.831 40,118 (26,468) 694,371
Currency translation
differences:
- Group - - - - - 5,993 5,993
- Jointly controlled entities - - - - - 91 91
Transfer from retained earnings - - - 1,415 - - 1,415
Exchange recognised directly
in equity - - - - - (2,881) (2,881)
Balance at 31 December 2004 602,026 70,000 864 9,246 40,118 (23,265) 698,989
Balance at 1 January 2005 602,026 70,000 864 9,246 40,118 (23,265) 698,989
Currency translation
differences:
- Group - - - - - (17,092)  (17,092)
- Associates - - - - - 545 545
- Jointly controlled entities - - - - - 7,529 7,529
Transfer from retained earnings - - - 10,161 - - 10,161
Balance at 31 December 2005 602,026 70,000 864 19,407 40,118 (32,283) 700,132
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19 Other reserves (Continued)

(b) Company

Balance at 1 January 2004
and 2005 and 31 December 2005

Capital

Share General  redemption
premium reserve reserve Total
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
602,026 70,000 40,118 712,144

In accordance with the local laws and regulations of a subsidiary, the subsidiary is required to transfer the gain on

deemed disposal of its associate to the capital reserve. The capital reserve in connection with the gain on deemed

disposal of its associate can only be used to cover operating losses.

In accordance with the local laws of subsidiaries in Taiwan, these subsidiaries are required to set aside 10% of

annual net income less any accumulated deficit as legal reserve to the extent that the legal reserve amounts to total

contributed share capital. The application of the legal reserve is restricted to covering operating losses and conversion

into share capital.

The capital redemption reserve and share premium account of the Group were set up in accordance with the

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Distributable reserves, include retained earnings and general reserve, of the Company at 31 December 2005,
calculated under Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$3,247,946,000 (2004:

HK$2,618,142,000).

20 Trade and other payables and accruals

Trade payables to :
Associates
Related parties
Third parties
Other payables and accruals
Payable for financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (Note 16)
Payable for other investments (Note 16)

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK3$°000
7,692 1,551 - -
237 1,037 - .
91,188 85,232 44,663 42,461
487,239 450,383 213,851 205,219
56,876 - - -
189,432 - -
643,232 727,635 258,514 247,680
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20 Trade and other payables and accruals (Continued)

At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the aging analysis of the trade payables including trading balances due to associates and

related parties is as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Current 61,487 59,805 35,057 33,034
1-2 months 22,211 21,877 7,539 8,030
2-3 months 8,391 1,662 1,649 1,026
3-4 months 1,884 1,108 40 221
4-5 months 229 1,095 16 143
Over 5 months 4,915 2,273 362 7
99,117 87,820 44,663 42,461

Trade payables due to:
Third parties 91,188 85,232 44,663 42,461
Associates and related parties 7,929 2,588 - -
99,117 87,820 44,663 42,461

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables and accruals approximate their fair values.

21 Borrowings

Group

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000

Non-current
Long-term bank loans - 48,683

Current

Current portion of long-term bank loans - 5,366
Current portion of long-term other loans - 4,253
Obligations under finance leases - 83
Short-term bank loans - 2,338

Total borrowings - 60,723
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21

Borrowings (Continued)

All bank loans and other loans were fully repaid during 2005. At 31 December 2004, bank loans and other loans of
HK$58,302,000 were secured by land and buildings with net book value of HK$109,894,000.

The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

2004
Bank loans Others loans Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
In the first year 7,704 4,253 11,957
In the second year 5,623 - 5,623
In the third to fifth year 18,534 - 18,534
After the fifth year 24,526 - 24,526
56,387 4,253 60,640
At 31 December 2005 and 2004, the Group’s finance lease liabilities were repayable as follows:
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
In the first year - present value - 83
The effective interest rates at balance sheet date were as follows:
2004
GBP NT$ US$
Bank borrowings 5.75% 4.68% -
Other loans - - 8.50%
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the following currencies:
2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$'000
New Taiwan dollars - 54,049
Sterling - 2,338
US dollars - 4,253
Australian dollars - 83
- 60,723
The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair values.
75




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

22 Deferred income tax

76

The movement in the deferred income tax liabilities/(assets) account is as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

At 1 January 106,778 72,207 123,530 94,365
Exchange differences 82 (89) - -
Recognised in the income statement (Note 28) 18,522 34,660 (4,968) 29,165
At 31 December 125,382 106,778 118,562 123,530

Deferred income tax liabilities of HK$329,000 (2004: HK$317,000) have not been established for the withholding and
other taxation that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of an investee company.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2005, the Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$478,107,000 (2004: HK$465,557,000) to carry forward against future taxable income. These tax losses will expire as
follows:

Group
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
In the first year - -
In the second to fifth year 920 1,018
After the fifth year 68,173 67,343
No expiry date 409,014 397,196

478,107 465,557
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22 Deferred income tax (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation
jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

(a) Group

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated tax
depreciation Others Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$000

At 1 January 135,885 136,041 2,931 4,617 138,816 140,658
Recognised in the

income statement 6,971) (148) 28,664 (1,691) 21,693 (1,839)
Exchange differences (12) (8) %) 5 an 3)
At 31 December 128,902 135,885 31,590 2,931 160,492 138,816

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions Tax losses Others Total
2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$600 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS 000

At 1 January 2,783 18,138 12,665 29,467 16,590 20,346 32,038 68,451
Recognised in the

income statement (2,601)  (15,391) 7,227 (16,780) (1,455) (4,328) 3,171 (36,499)
Exchange differences - 36 (60) (22) 39) 72 99) 86
At 31 December 182 2,783 19,832 12,665 15,096 16,590 35,110 32,038




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)

22 Deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Company

Deferred income tax liabilities

Accelerated tax
depreciation Others Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS$’000

At 1 January 129,794 131,633 1,380 2,747 131,174 134,380
Recognised in the

income statement (6,487) (1,839) (350) (1,367) (6,837) (3,206)
At 31 December 123,307 129,794 1,030 1,380 124,337 131,174

Deferred income tax assets

Provisions Tax losses Others Total

2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$’000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000

At | January 1,869 3,575 - 29,015 5,175 5425 7,644 40,015
Recognised in the
income statement (1,869) (3,706) - (29,015) - 350 (1,869)  (32,371)
At 31 December - 1,869 - - 5,775 5,775 5,775 7,644
Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004

HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$°000

Net deferred income tax assets

recognised on the balance sheet (24,358) (18,592) - -
Net deferred income tax liabilities
recognised on the balance sheet 149,740 125,370 118,562 123,530

125,382 106,778 118,562 123,530
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23 Retirement benefit obligations

Group
2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Obligations on:
- pensions - defined contribution plans (note (a)) 7,151 5,584
- pensions - defined benefits plans (note (b)) 18,503 16,215
25,654 21,799

Notes:
(a) Pensions - defined contribution plans
Forfeited contributions totalling HK$7,668,000 (2004: HK$7,479,000) were utilised during the year.

Contributions totalling HK$7,151,000 (2004: HK$5,584,000) were payable to the fund at the year end and are
included in other payables and accruals.

(b) Pensions - defined benefits plans

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement scheme providing benefits to eligible employees located in Taiwan
under the local regulations.

The pension plan is a final salary defined benefit plan. The assets of the funded plan are held independently of
those of the Group, being invested through a central trust fund. The plan is valued by a qualified actuary annually
using the projected unit credit method. The latest valuation was carried out as of 31 December 2005 by Client View ‘
Management Consulting Co., Ltd.. [

The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are determined as follows:

Group

2005 2004

HK$'000 HK$°000

Present value of funded obligations 47,120 44,903
Fair value of plan assets (21,428) (17,231)
25,692 27,672
Unrecognised actuarial losses (7,189) (11,457)
Liability in the balance sheet 18,503 16,215
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23 Retirement benefit obligations (Continued)

(b) Pensions - defined benefits plans {Continued)

The amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement are as follows:

Group
2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Current service cost 4,434 5,600
Interest cost 1,610 1,058
Expected return on plan assets (85) 252
Total, included in employee benefit expense (Note 26(b)) 5,959 6,910
The actual return on plan assets was HK$280,000 (2004: HK$370,000).
The movement in the liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as follows:
Group
2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
At 1 January 16,215 11,372
Exchange differences 139 417
Total expense - as shown above 5,959 6910
Contributions paid (3,810) (2,484)
At 31 December 18,503 16,215
The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
Group
2005 2004
% %
Discount rate 3.50 3.50
Expected rate of return on plan assets 2.50 2.50
Expected rate of future salary increases 3.00 3.00
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24 Provisions

Group Company
Onerous Contracts Onerous Contracts
2005 2004 2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000

At 1 January 15,906 95,125 10,682 31,857
Less: utilised during the year (14,864) (30,173) (10,682) (21,175)
Less: settlement of onerous contracts - (37,395) - -
Less: write back of surplus upon settlement - (11,832) - -
Exchange differences - 181 - -
At 31 December 1,042 15,906 - 10,682

Analysis of total provisions

Non-current - 1,045 - -
Current 1,042 14,861 - 10,682
1,042 15,906 - 10,682

The carrying amounts of provisions approximate their fair values.

25 Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling, distribution and transmission costs, general and administrative expenses and
other operating expenses/(income) are:

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$’000
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,927 (1,586)
Net exchange loss/(gain) 1,127 (2,558)
Auditors’ remuneration 3,660 3,185
Non-audit service fees paid to principal auditors
(mainly tax services) 2,741 631
Cost of programmes, film rights, movies and stocks 1,148,348 1,311,297
Depreciation - owned property, plant and equipment 260,375 265,181
Depreciation - leased property, plant and equipment 1 27
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 6) 4,568 4,567
Amortisation of goodwill (Note 7) - 7,397
Impairment of goodwill (Note 7) 5,894 -
Impairment on loan to a jointly controlled entity 14,638 -
Operating leases
- equipment and transponders 66,281 64,137
- land and buildings 35,465 24,654

Employee benefit expense
(excluding directors’ emoluments) (Note 26(b)) 1,124,284 1,160,175
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26 Directors’ emoluments and employee benefit expense
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(a) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 December 2005 is set out below:

Salary and Discretionary Pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonuses  contributions Total
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Executive Directors
Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. 900 - - - 900
Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang,
G.B.S.,LLD., JP. 30 4,180 - 12 4,222
Louis Page 105 2,400 1,700 240 4,445
Non-executive Directors
Mona Fong 259 - 259
Dr. Chow Yei Ching, G.B.S. 30 - - - 30
Ho Ting Kwan 30 1,580 - 145 1,755
Chien Lee (note (1)) 45 - - - 45
Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan 30 - - - 30
Lee Jung Sen, O.B.E. (note (ii)) 50 - - - 50
Dr. Li Dak Sum, DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. 50 - - 50
Kevin Lo Chung Ping 105 - - - 105
Robert Sze Tsai To 174 - - 174
1,808 8,160 1,700 397 12,065
The remuneration of every Director for the year ended 31 December 2004 was set out below:
Salary and Discretionary Pension
Name of Director Fees allowance bonuses contributions Total
HKS$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Executive Directors
Sir Run Run Shaw, G.B.M. 900 - - - 900
Dr. Norman Leung Nai Pang,
G.BS.,LLD.,IP - 4,180 - 12 4,192
Louis Page 105 2,400 1,400 240 4,145
Non-executive Directors
Mona Fong {(note (iii)) 733 - - - 733
Dr. Chow Yei Ching, G.B.S. 30 - - - 30
Ho Ting Kwan 30 4,350 900 435 5,715
Christina Lee Look Ngan Kwan 30 - - - 30
Lee Jung Sen, O.B.E. 125 - - - 125
Dr. Li Dak Sum, DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. 50 - - - 50
Kevin Lo Chung Ping (note (iv)) - - - - -
Robert Sze Tsai To 170 - - - 170
2,173 10,930 2,300 687 16,090
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26 Directors’ emoluments and employee benefit expense (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:
(i) The Director was appointed on 17 March 2005.

(ii) The Director retired on 25 May 2005.

(iii) The amount stated above included Director’s fee of HK$478,000 in respect of the period from 25 October 2000

to 31 December 2003,

(iv) In 2004, a Director, Kevin Lo Chung Ping, waived fees payable to him as Director and Executive Committee

member of the Company totalling HK$105,000.

Employee benefit expense

Wages and salaries
Pension costs - defined contribution plans
Pension costs - defined benefits plans

Five highest paid individuals

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
1,054,296 1,085,380
64,029 67,885
5,959 6,910
1,124,284 1,160,175

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for the year include two (2004: three) Directors

whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in note (a) above. The emoluments payable to the remaining

three (2004: two) individuals during the year are as follows:

Salaries and allowances
Bonuses
Pension contributions

The aggregate emoluments paid to the individuals are further analysed into the following bands:

Emolument bands

HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000
HK$4,000,001 - HK$4,500,000
HK$13,000,001 - HK$13,500,000

2005 2004
HK$°000 HKS$°000
8,940 5,666
10,938 1,083
594 555
20,472 7,304

Number of individuals in each band

2005

2004

1
1
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28
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Finance costs

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000

Interest on overdrafts, bank loans and other loans
- wholly repayable within five years 618 4,286
- not wholly repayable within five years 338 2,682
Interest element of finance leases - 38
Total finance costs incurred 956 7,006

Income tax expense
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the
year. Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement represents:

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Current income tax:

- Hong Kong profits tax 179,907 80,863
- Overseas taxation 34,629 34,209
- (Over)/under provisions in prior years (704) 2,580

Deferred income tax relating to the origination
and reversal of temporary differences (Note 22) 18,522 34,660
232,354 152,312
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28

29

30

31

Income tax expense (Continued)

The income tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
taxation rate of the place where the company operates as follows:

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Profit before income tax 1,419,601 901,884
Calculated at a taxation rate of 17.5% (2004: 17.5%) 248,430 157,830
Effect of different taxation rates in other countries (30,082) (37,070)
Tax effect of share of results of associates and
jointly controlled entities 32,760 30,187
Income not subject to taxation (28,386) (13,799)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 8,151 5,956
Tax losses not recognised 3,929 16,140
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (20,848) (4,690)
Tax credit allowance (4,198) (2,599)
Tax on undistributed profits 28,728 -
Allowance for previous non-deductible expenses (12,580) -
Withholding tax 9,243 -
Others (2,089) (2,223)
(Over)/under provisions in prior years (704) 2,580
232,354 152,312

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company to the
extent of HK$1,089,704,000 (2004: HK$648,509,000).

Earnings per share

The earnings per share is calculated based on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of HK$1,180,019,000 (2004:
HK$719,415,000) and 438,000,000 shares in issue throughout the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004. No fully
diluted earnings per share is presented as there were no potentially dilutive shares outstanding.

Dividends
2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.25 (2004: I—iK$O.20)
per ordinary share 109,500 87,600
Proposed final dividend of HK$1.30 (2004: HK$0.80)
per ordinary share 569,400 350,400
678,900 438,000
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31 Dividends (Continued)

At a meeting held on 22 March 2006, the Directors declared a final dividend of HK$1.30 per ordinary share. This proposed
dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in these financial statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of

retained earnings for the year ending 31 December 2006.

32 Notes to the consolidated cash flow statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to cash generated from operations

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Operating profit 1,607,784 1,081,391
Gain on disposal of a jointly controlled entity (623) -
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (148,778) -
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets (1,233) -
Depreciation and amortisation of leasehold land 264,944 269,775
Impairment of goodwill 5,894 -
Amortisation of goodwill - 7,397
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3,927 (1,586)
Write back of surplus upon settlement of onerous contracts - (11,832)
Utilisation/settlement of onerous contracts (14,864) (67,568)
In-kind contribution to an associate (note (b)) - (150,000)
Impairment on available-for-sale financial assets 2,239 -
Impairment on loan to a jointly controlled entity 14,638 -
Interest income (25,151) (20,294)
Exchange differences (1,561) 2,056
Operating profit before working capital changes 1,707,216 1,109,339
Decrease in programmes, film rights, movies and stocks 224 156,461
Increase in trade and other receivables,
prepayments and deposits (259,589) (15,239)
Increase in trade and other payables and accruals 51,812 30,093
Increase in retirement benefit obligations -
defined benefits plans 2,288 4,843
Cash generated from operations 1,501,951 1,285,497

(b) Significant non-cash transaction

In 2004, investment in an associate of HK$150,000,000 was made by way of the provision of programme content to

the associate.
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33 Contingent liabilities

(a)

(b)

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000

Guarantees for banking facilities granted to
- subsidiaries - - - 128,308
- an investee company 8,688 8,756 - -

8,688 8,756 - 128,308

It is anticipated that no material liabilities will arise from the above bank and other guarantees which arose in the
ordinary course of business.

In March 2005, the Group received additional profits tax assessment notices from the Inland Revenue Department of
Hong Kong (“IRD”) for the year of assessment 1998/99 for profits generated by the Group’s programme licensing
and distribution business carried out overseas. The total amount of the additional assessments of profits tax was
HK$98,277,000. The Group had been granted a holdover of these additional assessments.

Subsequently, in February 2006, the Group received additional profits tax assessment notices from IRD in respect of
the year of assessment 1999/2000 for profits generated by the Group’s programme licensing and distribution business
carried out overseas. The total amount of the additional assessments of profits tax was HK$98,576,000.

The Group has objected to these additional assessments. The Group believes that the objection is well-founded, and
is determined to defend the Group’s position vigorously. On this basis, the Group is of the view that no additional tax

provision is necessary.

34 Commitments

(a)

Capital commitments
The amounts of commitments for property, plant and equipment are as follows:
Group Company

2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000

Authorised but not contracted for 170,941 184,390 112,373 101,645
Contracted but not provided for 12,513 14,845 10,456 9,728
183,454 199,235 122,829 111,373

The Group did not share any capital commitments of the jointly controlled entities for the years ended 31 December
2005 and 2004,
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34 Commitments (Continued)
(b) Operating lease commitments
At 31 December 2005, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating

leases as follows:

Group Company
2005 2004 2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

Land and buildings
- not later than one year 25,369 37,077 3,959 15,613
- later than one year and not later than five years 43,737 51,892 2,046 4,266
- later than five years 1,620 11,769 - -
. T0726 100738 6005 19879
Equipment and transponders
- not later than one year 30,819 62,427 1,032 922
- later than one year and not later than five years 39,360 60,557 471 1,175
- later than five years - 5,537 - -
0w ussal 1503 2007 .
140,905 229,259 7,508 21,976

35 Television broadcasting licence

The Company operates under the terms of a licence granted by the Government of the HKSAR which runs for a period of
twelve years to 30 November 2015. The licence will be subject to a mid-term review in 2009.
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36 Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

Note 2005 2004
HK$'000 HK$°000
(a) Sales of goods and services
Sales of services to other related parties
Programmes/channel licensing fee @ 131,030 136,193
Advertising agency fee ) 33,688 30,315
Management fee (1) 30,320 7,595
Advertising income (ii} - 9,548
Rental of satellite equipment and technical
service fee (i1) 764 7,719
Transponder leasing fee (ii) 475 5,161
Programmes licensing fee (ii) 6,843 6,232
Movie licensing fee (viii) 9,000 -
Sales of services to an associate
Programmes/channel licensing fee @iv) 194,623 173,563
Channel package service fee (iv) 3,691 -
Downlink service fee @v) 1,110 -
Advertising income (iv) 20,715 -
Rental income and related charges (iv) 6,812 7,153
Others @iv) 3,431 343
442,502 383,822
(b) Purchases of goods and services
Purchases of services from other related parties
Rental fee (v) (8,866) (17,732)
Optical fibre rental fee (i1) (195) (1,968)
Satellite relay service fee (i1) (382) (3,859)
Programmes/channel licensing fee (vi) (4,011) (2,379)
Supply network and telephone system (vil) (1,350) (2,648)
Others (viii) (506) -
Purchases of services from an associate
Playback and uplink service fee @iv) (37,541) (40,849)
Others (iv) (1,045) -
(53,896) (69,435)
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36 Significant related party transactions (Continued)
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{©

Notes:

()

(i)

(1i1)

@iv)
)

(vi)

{vii)

(viii)

The fees were received from MEASAT Broadcast Network Systems Sdn. Bhd., an associate of the minority
shareholder of non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The fees were received from/(paid to) Era Communications Co. Ltd. (“Era”), a minority shareholder of a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, LYP. Upon Era disposed all its shareholdings in LYP to a third party
on 4 February 2005, Era ceased to be a related party of the Company after that date.

The fees were received from ASTRO Entertainment Networks Ltd., an associate of the minority shareholder of
non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The fees were received from/(paid to) GSB, an associate of the Company.

The rental fees were paid to Shaw Brothers (Hong Kong) Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company in
respect of the lease of certain office and car parking spaces.

The fees were paid to Celestial Television Networks Ltd., an associate of the minority shareholder of non

wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The fees were paid to Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited (“CNSL”) in relation to the supply, installation
and maintenance of the private automatic branch exchange system and structured cabling network. The total
sum was settled by way of installments. The controlling shareholder of the holding company of CNSL, is also a
Director of the Company.

The fees were received from/(paid to) Celestial Productions Limited, an associate of the minority shareholder of

non wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Key management compensation

2005 2004
HK$°000 HK$°000
Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 30,730 21,430
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36 Significant related party transactions (Continued)

(d) Year-end balances

2005 2004

HK$°000 HK$°000

Receivables from other related parties (note (i)) 39,949 48,349
Receivables from an investee company - 2,167
Receivables from associates {(note (ii)) 202,748 25,902
242,697 76,418

Payables to other related parties 237 1,037
Payables to associates 7,692 1,551
7,929 2,588

Notes:
(i) At 31 December 2005, a provision for impairment of receivable from other related parties of HK$2,262,000 (2004:
HK$7,880,000) had been provided.

(ii) At 31 December 2005, a provision for impairment of receivable from associates of HK$1,887,000 (2004:
HK$1,892,000) had been provided.

(e) Loans to related parties

2005 2004
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loans to investee companies
Beginning of the year 52,210 51,085
Write off of loan (37,947) -
Loan repayments received (7,393) -
Interest expensed 402 417
Interest received (366) 417)
Exchange differences (194) 1,125
End of the year 6,712 52,210
Provision for impairment - (37,947)

6,712 14,263
Loan to an associate
Beginning of the year 133,397 115,564
Interest expensed 10,672 17,833

End of the year 144,069 133,397
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36 Significant related party transactions (Continued)
(e) Loans to related parties (Continued)

The loans to the investee companies are unsecured and interest free, and have no fixed terms of repayment, except for

an amount of HK$6,676,000 (2004: HK$8,271,000) which carries interest at 2% per annum above the Canadian Prime
Rate.

The loan to an associate is unsecured and carries interest at 8% per annum compounded annually. The principal
amount and the accrued interest shall be payable to the Company in two annual installments on 20 February 2007 and
20 February 2008 respectively, unless the associate is publicly floated before either date, whereupon the outstanding
principal amount and accrued interest shall be prepaid.

37 Approval of consolidated financial statements

92

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2006.
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38 Subsidiaries

Percentage
Place of Issued and fully paid of equity
incorporation ordinary preference capital held by
and kind of share share the the

Name legal entity capital capital Group Company Principal activities

# iTVB Holdings Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Islands, limited
liability company

# Jade Animation Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 100 Inactive
International Limited liability company

Long Wisdom Limited  Hong Kong, limited HK$2 - 100 100 Dormant
liability company

# OHE Facilities Limited Bermuda, limited US$20,000 - 100 100 Inactive
liability company

TVB Investment Limited ~ Bermuda, limited US$20,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
liability company

TVB Music Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 - 100 100 Production, publishing

liability company and licensing of

musical works

# TVB Club Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$1 - 100 100 Dormant
liability company

# TVB Satellite TV Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited liability company

TVBI Company Hong Kong, limited HK$2,000,000 - 100 100 Investment holding

Limited liability company and programme

licensing

TVBO Production Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 100 Owner of film rights

Limited liability company and programme

licensing

Art Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 - 73.68 - Investment in

liability company entertainment and

media business

Capital Empire Limited British Virgin US$1,000 - 100 - Owner of film rights

Islands, limited

liability company

and programme

licensing
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (coniinued)

38 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Place of Issued and fully paid of equity
incorporation ordinary preference capital held by
and kind of share share the the
Name legal entity capital capital Group Company Principal activities
CC Decoders Ltd. United Kingdom, GBP2 - 100 - Provider of decoder
limited liability units
company
Condor Entertainment The Netherlands, EUR18,400 - 100 - Programme licensing
B.V. limited liability and distribution
company
Countless Entertainment Tatwan, limited  NT$1,000,000 - 100 - Investment holding
(Taiwan) Co. Ltd. liability company
# Extra Profit Holdings British Virgin HKS$1 - 100 - Investment holding
Limited Islands, limited
liability company
# Fairwork Group Limited British Virgin US$1,000 - 100 - Investment holding
Islands, limited
liability company
# Golden Star Video Malaysia, limited MYR10,000 - 51 - Inactive
Library Sdn. Bhd. liability company
Interface Co. Ltd. Taiwan, limited NT$199,800,000 - 92.51 - Magazine publication
liability company
# iTVB Limited British Virgin HK$10,000 - 100 - Investment holding
Islands, limited
liability company
Jade Animation Hong Kong, limited HK$2 - 100 - Provision of
Company Limited liability company animation services
Jade Animation Hong Kong, limited HK$500,000 - 100 - Investment holding
Productions Limited liability company
Jade Multimedia Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 - Animation investment,

International Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

38 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Place of Issued and fully paid of equity
incorporation ordinary preference capital held by
and kind of share share the the

Name legal entity capital capital Group Company Principal activities

Liann Yee Production Taiwan, limited NT$880,000,000 - 100 - Production of television

Co. Ltd. liability company programmes, leasing of

film studios and

advertising

* Oriental Home Canada, limited CADI100 - 100 - Programme licensing

Entertainment Inc, liability company and distribution

Peony Holding N.V. Netherlands US$100 US$6,000 100 - Investment holding and

Antilles, limited provision of services for

liability company programme productions

# Request Investments British Virgin HK$1 - 100 - Inactive
Limited Islands, limited
liability company

# The Chinese Channel Hong Kong, limited HK$4 - 100 - Inactive
Limited liability company

The Chinese Channel United Kingdom, GBP1,111 - 100 - Provision of services for

Limited limited liability programme productions
company

The Chinese Channel France, limited EUR37,000 - 100 - Provision of satellite and

(France) SAS liability company subscription television

programmes

# The Chinese Channel Cayman Islands, GBP89,640 - 100 - Investment holding
(Holdings) Limited limited liability
company

# Toysters Animation British Virgin US$1,000 - 55 - Dormant
International Ltd. Islands, limited
liability company

TVB (Australia) Pty. Ltd.  Australia, limited A$5,500,000 - 100 - Provision of satellite

liability company

and subscription
television programmes
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Place of Issued and fully paid of equity
incorporation ordinary preference capital held by
and kind of share share the the

Name legal entity capital capital Group Company Principal activities

TVB Facilities Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 - 100 - Provision of services for

liability company programme productions

* TVB Holdings (USA) Inc. USA, limited  US$6,010,000 - 100 - Investment holding and

liability company programme licensing

and distribution

# TVB International Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000 - 100 - Inactive
Limited liability company

TVB Macau Company Macau, limited MOP25,000 - 100 - Provision of services

Limited liability company for programmes

productions

# TVB (Overseas) Limited  Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 - Inactive
liability company

§ TVB Publishing Hong Kong, limited HK$8,550,000 - 73.68 - Investment holding
Holding Limited liability company

TVB Publications Hong Kong, limited HK$20,000,000 - 73.68 - Magazine publications
Limited liability company

TVB Satellite Hong Kong, limited HK$2 - 100 - Provision of

Broadcasting Limited liability company programming and

channel services

* TVB Satellite Platform, Inc. USA, limited  US$3,000,000 - 100 - Provision of satellite and

liability company subscription television

programmes

TVB Satellite TV Bermuda, limited US$12,000 - 100 - Provision of satellite and

Entertainment Limited  liability company subscription television

programmes

TVB Satellite TV (HK) Hong Kong, limited HK$2 - 100 - Provision of subscription

Limited liability company television programmes

# TVB (Shanghai Holdings) British Virgin US$1 - 100 - Dormant

Limited Islands, limited
liability company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

38 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Percentage
Place of Issued and fully paid of equity
incorporation ordinary preference capital held by
and kind of share share the the
Name legal entity capital capital Group Company Principal activities
TVB (UK) Limited United Kingdom, GBP2 - 100 - Investment holding
limited liability
company
* TVB (USA) Inc. USA, limited US$10.000 - 100 - Provision of satellite and
liability company subscription television
programmes
TVB Video (UK) Limited  United Kingdom, GBP1.,000 - 100 - Inactive
limited liability
company
TVB.COM Limited Hong Kong, limited HK$2 - 100 - Internet web portal
liability company
TVBO Facilities Limited  Bermuda, limited US$12.,000 - 100 - Provision of services for
liability company programme productions
# Zennora Group Limited British Virgin US$1,000 - 100 - Investment holding
Islands, limited
liability company
* RS ERIRIEE) The People’s US$350,000 - 100 - Inactive

HEAHE Republic of
China, limited
liability company

None of the subsidiaries have issued any loan capital. Except for TVBO Facilities Limited and TVBO Production Limited
which operate worldwide, all subsidiaries operate principally in their place of incorporation.

* The accounts of these subsidiaries have been audited by firms other than PricewaterhouseCoopers, which do not materially
affect the results of the Group.

# The accounts of these subsidiaries are not audited.
§ On 30 November 2001, TVB Publishing Holding Limited issued a total of 9,000,000 ordinary shares (with a par value of
HK$0.10 per share) at HK$8.60 per share to its minority shareholders as unpaid shares. These shares will not be entitled to

voting and dividends rights until they are fully paid. In 2003, 4,500,000 ordinary shares were fully paid up and the balance
in respect of 4,500.000 ordinary shares were outstanding.
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+—H=+—H 182 2,783 19,832 12,665 15,096 16,590 35,110 32,038
(b) ARH]
BEMEREE
RIS Hith RegE
ZOO0OA ZO0Om ZOO0H ZOoO0m ZO0HR Z00mrm
#wETIT BE T BB BT BT B%TR
—B—H 129,794 131,633 1,380 2,747 131,174 134,380
FiBs e (6,487)  (1,839) (350) (1,367) (6,837) (3,206)
+ZB=+—8 123,307 129,794 1,030 1,380 124,337 131,174
BIEFTISREE
b Mg Hoth HEEH
ZOO0OH ZO0OW ZO0H Z0O0W™ —OO0H Z00m™ Z—00H =00d
BT BT T BT BT B¥TIT BT E%T T EB¥TI
—HA—H 1,869 5,575 - 29015 5,775 5,425 7,644 40,015
TEIR R FRMER (1,869)  (3,706) - (29,015 - 350 (1,869)  (32,371)

+-H=+—H - 1,869 - - 5,775 5,775 5,775 7,644
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IERBMRMEE o)

22

23
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EIEFR1SEL (8D

HERNEERERIGRERBRERE SR
HENEESERIBREAERAEFSR

RIKEFET

4=
—BiRE — FRESEKGHE (HEE ()
—iRfkE — FUE@AIETE] (HEE (b))

HMIEE -

() BiRE — FUEHSKETE

A AT
—00#___—OOm ___—OOA __—OON
ETIL  emTT  A%TiL BRI
(24,358) (18,592) - -
149,740 125,370 118,562 123,530
125,382 106,778 118,562 123,530

A
—00% —O0H
BT BEBTT
7,151 5,584
18,503 16,215
25,654 21,799

IR UBERR & S 7,668,0005T (2004 & #EHE7,479,00000 ) ERENEIA °

REFERE (S HE S R 7,151,000 7T (2004 + #%55,584,0007T) » LI EMENRRESERRN -

(0 EfkE — FEBHEE

AEERBEEERERE —AEEAERTE - BENGER ETRIEN -

RIS EIRERERF I B IR EENEE - REFEHBCEERINAEECEE AP RERES
RERE - RATEIEFHAERERNRARG EUEREEE - FHCEEEBMROFRAFEFHEE—

RBE_OOAF+_A=+—HILZf -




i

BRHBRME (@

23

BRIAEFIRE (D
(b) BikE — FEENEE &)

EHEEEARKRERCSEE TIIHERE

—O0H —O0mH

BT BT
FEETZRE 47,120 44,903
SHEIEEC ARE ; (21,428) (17,231)

25,692 27,672
REIEEEE (7,189) (11,457)
LEEA/EANEE 18,503 16,215
A SIEREEE ST
AEE

—OO0H —0o0oH

T BT
HAERBEE 4,434 5,600
FIERAR 1,610 1,058
SHEIEE TR EE (85) 252
&3 (PR EEEFIF) (FTEE26(b) 5,959 6,910
SHEIE 2 E ISR 5 8 280,0007T (2004 & ##370,0007T) -
EFEaEEAARMRECABEENT ¢

A

ZO0OH —0o0mH

T HRETIT
—H—H 16,215 11,372
EREE 139 417
M H - EYIR 5,959 6,910
EfTHERR (3,810) (2,484)
+—-B=+—H 18,503 16,215




™A
=

BIFSERERMTEE (o

23

24
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RAEFIEE GRD
(b) EffE — FEEFEE (&)

IR EREERROT

BEIRE
FHEREC RS ERR
R < TR R

I

—H—H

o EAREEH

W OETERER

B BT ERFERERE  [@E
EREER

+Zf=+-8
BB

FETE
i

BRAIEEEEA N T EES -

A%H
—O0H —0o0m
% %
3.50 3.50
2.50 2.50
3.00 3.00
AEE FE
HHLEHR AR
—O0%H —00n —O0H ~00m

T BT

BT AR T

15,906 95,125 10,682 31,857
(14,864) (30,173) (10,682) (21,175)
(37,395) . -

(11,832)
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i aMBREMEE
25  HUER

THFIRHERA « 35 « DHEEEEARE - B RITEHY - DREMBERS / RA) 2T -

—ZO0H —o0Om
T BT
HEYE - B EREBR/ () 3,927 (1,586)
HESTETE / () 3R 1,127 (2,558)
BEETE & 3,660 3,185
TP TEZHMC I EBSRHE (EERRERE) 2,741 631
EiH - ZFRE - ERRETRF 1,148,348 1,311,297
e - BEYE S REH 260,375 265,181
TE - HEWE - B RERH 1 27
P& L RSy (fEE6) 4,568 4,567
PR (T - 7,397
EEIIE (HEET) 5,804
HEEHE RS RE 14,638
REHE -
— M SR 66,281 64,137
— RS 35,465 24,654
BEEMEZ  TEEEEMS (HF5E 26(0) 1,124,284 1,160,175
26 ESMEREBSEFRER
() EEM&
BEZOOAE+TZH=Z1—HILFE r ELESWHENT ¢
Fer  BEREN OEBKRE
EEAEY & et ZAERL it HeE
BT BEBTIT BT BETT  BEETR
HITES
AL GBM. 900 - 900
Z7E#E+ GB.S., LLD, P 30 4,180 . 12 4,222
BEH 105 2,400 1,700 240 4,445
EMITES
FiRE 259 259
B IEE - G.B.S. 30 . i 30
A&y 30 1,580 145 1,755
FlEz (MFEE @) 45 45
Tk ERE 30 30
Fl|%7% O.B.E. (M3 (i) 50 50
Z3E =18+ DSSc. (Hon.), I.P. 50 50
BIA 105 105
FEM 174 174
1,808 8,160 1,700 397 12,065
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ITEERERME

26 ESEMERESHEFFEZ G
() EHEH® ()

BE_OONE+_HA=+—HILEE SLEINMSUT

ek EBREHR OBKE
BEEAL e e ZAEAL HEEK ks
EETIT BT EBTIT EBTIT B%TT

HITESE _
A&k B+ G.B.M. 900 - - - 900
Z7hME#%+ G.B.S,,LL.D., I.P. - 4,180 - 12 4,192
BEE 105 2,400 1,400 240 4,145

EHMITEE
T7%E (HE (i) 733 - - - 733
7R #+ GB.S. 30 - . . 30
fAIESS 30 4,350 900 435 5,715
FIREMERE 30 - - - 30
FZ% O.B.E. 125 - - - 125
Z53% =+ DSSc. (Hon.), J.P. 50 - - - 50
TR (EEGv) - - - - -
e 170 - - - 170

2,173 10,930 2,300 687 16,090

BEE

() ZESER-_OOHEE=R+tHEZE-
(i) ZEEN_OCAFEAAZ+ABEE -

(iii) LB BFER _OOOF+THZ+ARHEZOO=ZF+ZA=+—HHENEEHR & HBEEE478.00(
T e

(v RZOOMERN » —ZEE  BFATEREALFRTIEERITHRRZEGREMES HEZEEF 105,000
IC °

(b) {ERMENBISZ

Z0O0H —o0ow
HERTIT BT
FHEIE 1,054,296 1,085,380
BREA— R ERIGHE 64,029 67,885
BRI —FRETRFIFHE 5,959 6,910

1,124,284 1,160,175
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aMBRERNE

26 EEWeRES\EYNEAX (B
(o) Efumm#HMAL

FEEAERNT GRS A CEEM (2004 1 =()HERZMES T RITEE (@D - HER=f1 (2004 ©
i) e F AL BB T

—OCH —OC™
BT e ToT
& Rk 8,940 5,666
TeAL 10,938 1,083
Bk HER 594 555
20,472 7,304
AT A BRI IR AT AT
HE LA B
i R Z AT ANE
—O0CH —O0™
F#E14 3,000,001 70 — ¥ 3,500,000 7T 1 1
#kiE 4,000,001 7T — H##5 4,500,000 7T 1 1
1% 13,000,0015T — #%% 13,500,000 75 1
3 2
27 RBRERAE
—OCH —0o0m
EETT BT
RITES - BT ERREMEFTZHE
—BRAFEREETEER 618 4,286
—BARAERNZES 338 2,682
MERECHE . 38

R R AR 956 7,006
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FEEHREME
28 FRiERMEX

EFHFER B A EE G ERRSH LR E7.5% (2004 © 17.5%) HRIBYERE - IBINGSHIZ B2 ARB R E R (L2 E
MR AEEREREE S RITHRENE -

ERASERRSUHIHRERAT ¢

ZO0H i @len
BT T

EHRER
— BEFER 179,907 80,863
— IBINRIE 34,629 34,209
— EBEEEEE R/ RE (704) 2,580
BEFTESRERESENES KERE (HEE22) 18,522 34,660
232,354 152,312

FEEERNFRAFA SR CRIEERERBAAATRENESMEMA B HARES ZEUT ¢

ZOOH ~—o0ow

BT BETT
HOERFT SR BT R F) 1,419,601 901,884
BIER17.5% (2004 : 17.5%) 3T E 2018 248,430 157,830
EMBERTERERZE (30,082) (37,070
BB E AT RERTEHEBNEE I MBEE 32,760 30,187
R A (28,386) (13,799)
RO SZ 8,151 5,956
REMR CHRE 3,929 16,140
ERRARAEREIECRIE {20,848) (4,650)
MU % 2 AL (4,198) (2,599)
KRBT BRI 28,728 -
AT REIIRR Z e as (12,580)
i 9,243 -
Hiw {2,089) (2,223)
BEFEER (FER) / T2 (704) 2,580

232,354 152,312

29 EREEGEF

R BHE%E1,089,704,000 7T (2004 ¢ 388 648,509,000 5T ) 7 B B FEAL RS FIRTI AN B I o NEtE -

30 BREF

SR BRIt A R B AR FE 5 5 F/ 65 1,180,019,0007T (2004 © #E%6719,415,00070) R BE—OORFE R = OO
—H=T—HIEEETHETRE 438,000,000 58 - EZERANTRIIL > RREEBEENEERDT
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ot=]

BATERRFRMIEE (o

A

32

B

LR ERRE B AT AR EE T 0.257T (2004 ¢ #EH20.207T)
SEEE

EHRREARR) SRS R 1 30T (2004 ¢ #E9£0.807T)

—O0ha —oor
BT T ERTIT
109,500 87,600
569,400 350,400
678,900 438,000

YZOOAREZEZHZHBFTGH L FETCREIREEEERER 1,307 - IR B ENRAMHERR
FIIEEMRS - EHREBE_OOAF T+ A=+—HILEEIIWFRE BEIIK -

FERERERMEE

(a)

)

TR 3 1) B S PR A TR TR

el

HE—HEEHEE I
HERAREETIAERRNEREE R
HE— I ENeRMEE

T8 RS L E R

A

HIEIE - 258 RERBAVESIR / ()
B E R RER R 2 O

BA / BER A

LB S P — B AR Rk (M5 (1)
At HENEREERE
HEHEHEEERE

FiLEMA

ERER

B EESEERTZ A RT]

BAETE - BRIRE  ERRET

HenE BrEE R H B - REHREE
WEINE B e RO AN RO A B A
SR RS A — SR EAET &

EEEANRE

TERREZERLS

ZO0A —0o0r
T HERT T
1,607,784 1,081,391
(623)
(148,778)

(1,233) -
264,944 269,775
5,894 -

- 7,397

3,927 (1,586)

- (11,832)

(14,864) (67,568)

- (150,000)

2,239 -
14,638 -

(25,151) (20,294)
(1,561) 2,056
1,707,216 1,109,339
224 156,461

(259,589) (15,239)
51,812 30,093
2,288 4,843
1,501,951 1,285,497

ZOOWER - H—BE L TEEZREY150,000,000 TR E ELUEHFEN EAZ TEWELRER AKRT

= .

17




IZARMBHRRNE (e
33 EEEE
AREE ALE]
—0O0hA —o0m —0OCH —0o0ow
HETIT HETIT #HRET T BT
(a) TEHRBHEIEISRTHET
g N . - 128,308
——FRENH 8,688 8,756 -
8,688 8,756 . 128,308
FEEr L RE B HERCRTREREMBRIGELERARE -

() RZOOHEEZA  AEBWINTERER ("RER HEH-ANNAEE-AAEEREEZEHRE
PIEFRUEAIE - VIRBAEEEEIINETHSERITRSHEEB CBAEE  FEREINTIREELEN
98,277,0007C - AEE B BE{TIR -

HERZOOAREZA  FAEHEEREEEH—AAAEEZOCOFEFREEZHEBRENFTFRENE -
THREAEEEEINETWEI B RT R OEFER CBNEIE RSN REE R 1% 98,576,0007T -
AEHORTERENIRENRY - AEEFRAREEBRS  WEBHENFE - @l - AEEEBTLERIEE
HEBIME G -
34 K¥E
(a) EEEE

BEMRE - SV RERERBEEEWT ¢

172

AEE A H]
—O0#H —Qo0m™ —OCH —ZO0m
AT BT T BT
B EHERSD 170,941 184,390 112,373 101,645
BB RIBHE 12,513 14,845 10,456 9,728
183,454 199,235 122,829 111,373

RZOORERZOOWF+ZA=+—HEFE -

REEEESSHEEREBCELRE -




e EmRNE ()

34 EE A

(b WEEERE

KRIZOOHEE+ZRAZ+—B  AEERBETURBCREHEMNRIAN ROEERELT

AEE PN/ |
—Q0H —O0mm —O0H —oou
AT IT BT BT BT
LHURIEF
— FEEE—F 25,369 37,077 3,959 15,613
— B —EETERAFE 43,737 51,892 2,046 4,266
—EEAE 1,620 11,769 - -
076 100,738 6005 ] 19.879
B R B EE SR
—TBE—F 30,819 62,427 1,032 922
—BB—FETEEHE 39,360 60,557 471 1,175
—BERE - 5,537 - -
70179 128,521 ] 1,503 2,097
140,905 229,259 7,508 21,976

35 EREREAR

FOETRETRERTHERT R GFIGEE - MEREE+ —FEE-0O~AF+—A=1+H - LEEF
MRZOONE#EZPHRET -
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SEEREMEE (s
36 EXEBREALRS

UTHREEREANTETIRS

FtEE Z0O0H —o0omH
T T
(a) HEBERLKIRE
MEMEEATHERE
iR/ RERSE %)) 131,030 136,193
EHAHE 0 33,688 30,315
EHH (1) 30,320 7,595
BEEWA (ii) . 9,548
MHEEERE R MRS (i) 764 7,719
EEMEER (if) 475 5,161
EiE e (iii) 6,843 6,232
EPRSE (viii) 9,000 -
AHE N T HERE
giE / |ERNTE (iv) 194,623 173,563
HEEERBE (iv) 3,691 -
T EEREE (iv) 1,110
BES A (iv) 20,715 -
TSI A KRR (iv) 6,812 7,153
EHAh (iv) 3,431 343
442,502 383,822
(b) BEER AR
[ HAE BE A LRE E RS
HEER ) (8,866) (17,732)
HBHEER (ii) (195) (1,968)
FHEEEEHEERREE (ii) (382) (3,859)
B8 / RERTE (vi) (4,011) (2,379)
HEIEHEIE R BRE R (vii) (1,350) (2,648)
EAth (viii) (506) -
IS N A E R
BUR R E RN L {EHRE (iv) (37,541) (40,849)
it (iv) (1,045) -

(53,896) (69,435)
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IR e MIEmERMEE

36

EXEEALTRS GR)

GEE

®

(if)

(iii)

(iv)
)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

22 2 MEASAT Broadcast Network Systems Sdn. Bhd. A « AT B A AR S FIELENB LRI A
HIEHMBRAL -

HEBREHEABEERRGERLE (T ER OXMN /BRI - ZLATRFAF —ZEZTENBLE
BE - W ERE  SFRRZOCHEZRENHAS=ARMNHERLFMENHEER  AHEANEHR
THEEELTNEEANL -

It % & £ ASTRO Entertainment Networks Ltd. 37T - AT BRATEFIE2ERNBAT 2 B R 1
AL

MR R RALTHIRE S BSRASA / (WED -

HEHERERERAAKIAS(FB)BRAFINEEECIETEFERIEN - ZARAEAAFRNEER
B o

& E 2 Celestial Television Networks Ltd WXl » B2 R BA LTS R IEREN B AR DB AT
AL e

[tHE 2 2 Chevalier (Network Solutions) Limited ( "CNSL ;) §fHY /AR EEHIE - ZER(EE PABX
B R EEE « BEEARLSE AT - ONSL ZHERA T IRER R IR ANTCESE -

[l & 28 A 2 fHCelestial Productions LimitedS5 4 / (E) » AT BALNT L FIEZEN B AR D BEFERY
BB A4

(c) TEEEAEMS
—0O0H —o0om™
HEMET-IT HEETT
ek EMEEEESRER] 30,730 21,430
(d) EREEER
—O0xH —0o0m
EETT EreTT
JEIR HAERE A LB (MFEE () 39,949 48,349
el —EENFIFIE - 2,167
RN B N B ROR (BEE (D)) ‘ 202,748 25,902
242,697 76,418
FEfT G RIEALRIE 237 1,037
FE(TERE N FIFUE 7,692 1,551
7,929 2,588
MiEE -

(i

(ii)

FEECHRZOOLFE+Z A =+— BB EMHEA FURIFHIR (AR I ER2,262,00070.(2004
/5 7,880,0007T )

FEECHKZOOAFEFZRAZ+— O BEIRE AT FEFHR(ERFE LAY 1,887,0007C (2004 © &
1,892,0007C)
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A RENE
36 EBEAEREATRZS GA)

(e) EXTHMEAL

—O0H —O0py
BT T T
ERFEELT
EH] 52,210 51,085
T (37,947) -
W EIEHEE (7,393) -
FlExes 402 417
F| B EY (366) (417)
EGEE (194) 1,125
FE 6,712 52,210
B R . (37,947)
6,712 14,263
ERTHENT]
E¥ 133,397 115,564
FI B8 10,672 17,833
Ex 144,069 133,397

EENFZME - BREES6,676,0007T (2004 : #4228 271,00070 ) Z BB B NS AR EEFRESIN2%
S HESRERIER - fEREREERNH -

B8 ATREREE TSN BEASBLEHNE - R&RBHAEASTWINR-O0CE-F=+ARZO
ONFEZAZ+BEEAATER - MEWEATE LTI @0 S LT  (ELREEREFe R
IR

37 IRSHMmRME

WA EMBHRECHR_OOAREZR -+ HREZF4H# -
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FEMERERE
38 KBAT

BITRER
iR, wEE B EERcESLT

B poderyict=kicbill A A AEEE] VAN | FEEY

# iTVB Holdings Limited WEETEE HK$10,000 100 100 SRR
BRERELH

# Jade Animation BHEE - US$12,000 100 100 LI g 3
International Limited EESEEAT

E}EFRAT T HK$2 100 100 KEEHE
BHETETAE

# OHE Facilities Limited BEE US$20,000 100 100 fiet ¢
BREFAFE

TVB Investment Limited CBEE US$20,000 - 100 100 BT
EREIXAT

EREEERAHE s HK$1 100 100 FRERBE -

BHRETAH HRE R ETT

# BERERBREIEZTEAT B HK$1 100 100 KEEE
BEELAT

# TVB Satellite TV Holdings BHEE US$12,000 - 100 100 ’EER
Limited BREEEAF

EiREEER)ERAT FEE > HK$2,000,000 100 100 BRI

AREELEH g e T

TVBO Production Limited BRGE US$12,000 100 100 EIREiESRT
BRETLE

BHTETREAT i HK$10,000 73.68 [P

BRE&HEEAH EERE

Capital Empire Limited KBRS US$1,000 100 FIREIESET

BREERE
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TEMBHENME
38 KBAT (8

BITRER
S hEs EEE Bl EERHzEsk

ZHE BdE BRI A B AHEEH P /NG| FEER

CC Decoders Ltd. HEH - GBP2 100 ARSI
BEHEEAH

Condor Entertainment B.V. W EUR18,400 100 EiEB TR
BRETAT

HAVRISERGEREAT &8> NT$1,000,000 - 100 BB
BRBETAHE

# Extra Profit Holdings EEETHE HK$1 100 - RETER
Limited AREEEAT

# Fairwork Group Limited — ZBEZHE - US$1,000 100 R
BRETALF

# Golden Star Video - i MYR10,000 5] LRy
Library Sdn. Bhd. EREELT

RGO ERLT S NT$199,800,000 92.51 AR RS
HREETALOF

#iTVB Limited EBRITHE HK$10,000 100 WEER

BRETAH

HEHEERAT T HK$2 100 - RIREERS
BREEAE

BEHEMERELT =i HK$500,000 100 R
BRETLH

Jade Multimedia BEE US$12,000 - 100 EERE

International Limited ERETAT BITR S

HERERGEIEAT L8 > NT$880,000,000 100 - ETRETERME -
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e ETERARNEE

38 MBLE (&)

BITREL
EEMHEE, TER Bk HERpZESL

LiE Bk E ERER [itZN A AHE FEER

* Oriental Home ER CAD100 100 BTE ST R S8
Entertainment Inc. HREELAT

Peony Holding N.V. 1af US$100 US$6,000 100 HER

THSIEEEE FRERERE

EREELHE ZEHRERTE

# Request Investments EBELER HKS1 100 WEg
Limited EREELH

#IFREAERERAH & HK$4 100 e
BREETLH

The Chinese Channel TR GBP1,111 - 100 HEETHEE

Limited BREMELE < BRI

The Chinese Channel HE EUR37,000 100 BHEER

(France) SAS BEERTLH WEERETE

# The Chinese Channel FEMS GBP89,640 100 e
(Holdings) Limited EREEAH

# Toysters Animation EBRLEE US$1,000 55 KEEE
International Ltd. HIREEATE

TVB (Australia) Pty. Ltd. B A$5,500,000 - 100 EHEER

EREXLH WEERETE

EREFGFERERAF R HK$10,000 100 RHETE

BREEEXAT e BERRE

* TVB Holdings (USA) Inc. ZEE > US$6,010,000 100 EERE

BHEXEAT ETE#T RO

# TVB International Limited E HK$10,000 100 e

HIREELF
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i BREME G

38 MIBAR G

BTN
Sy LiEEE Bk WERbhzast

EA B E BRI B B AREE V7N TR

TVB BFIERAF et MOP25,000 100 A EH 8

HRETLF Z B HRS

# TVB (Overseas) Limited HEE US$12,000 100 HiEgs
BRETANTE

§ BiR BEIEHER (FEEY) ¥ > HKS$8,550,000 73.68 BREER
BHRAH BREEANE

EiREBHRERAE @ - HK$20,000,000 73.68 HRR s E
BREFAHE

BRBHE (2 EIR AT B HK$2 100 PRIEN R R BER

EREEAT SEBIRTS

* TVB Satellite Platform, Inc. xH US$3,000,000 100 REHER

HRETAT B EREE

TVB Satellite TV TRE, US$12,000 100 BREHFER

Entertainment Limited BEREFEAT IWEEBIRETE

EREEHEEREE) T HKS$2 100 RENBER

BREAF EREATAE §iE

# TVB (Shanghai Holdings) HBEZHE US$1 100 FEEHE
Limited BRETAHE

TVB (UK) Limited HE GBP2 100 REE
BREETATE

* TVB (USA) Inc. S5 US$10,000 100 BHHER

HEHEELAT B EREE

TVB Video (UK) Limited HE GBP1,000 100 L=t
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A BTERERNEE ()

MIBLR) G

BHTREW
EERipiCE LB B EBRMHZEST

B 4 RikEEREER A N PN FEEE

EREBREHREREAH ik HK$2 - 100 - B A P94
HEEMTAF

TVBO Facilities Limited AEE US$12,000 - 100 - RALETE BUE

AIEFELAF < BRIREE

# Zennora Group Limited EBELIE US$1,000 - 100 - BB
HIEETAH

= ERLEREIN RS PEARLR US$350,000 - 100 - UiEEs
HRAE HIREMTDE

AN B A =M\ TEEEA - [ TVBO Facilities Limited 52 TVBO Production Limited Z/A T R E #R& st - HEk
FrE B AR MBI K FEREHIE -

* HEMBLFEREIERBRFCEGAIES T MENAEECRELIFERLE -

# HENBLAIREREHE -

§ RZOO—FE+—HBH=+H " BREBHRIERESRAT LUREE SRR SR SREKS. 60THITHL
9,000,000& 3@ (B MEREH0.107T) PEAVBERR » WEROEEMTERIEITEHEETMRERRREIE
e RZOOZER -+ 4,500,000 %8 B 7 AR T AT - HEj 4,500,000 B8 58 ez B2 QI R 84T -
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